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& Vision
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A fair and impartial police complaints system
accountable to the public

fiEds Mission
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E{Eﬁ Values .Ensure.police complaints are handled in a fair,
impartial, effective and transparent manner,
# B3I Independence and advise on improvement to police
# AIF Impartiality procedures to enhance service quality and
#* S Integrity public accountability
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As in previous years, the Independent Police Complaints Council (IPCC)
has meticulously examined every single complaint. During the reporting
period, the Council endorsed a total of 2,218 allegations, 1,975 of which
were minor in nature, including misconduct, impoliteness, etc. Given that
close to 90% of the allegations were minor in nature, the Council worked
with the Complaints Against Police Office (CAPO) last year to expedite the
handling of minor complaints, with a focus on streamlining the procedure
for Informal Resolution (IR). A pilot programme was rolled out in May
2022. After the procedure was streamlined, CAPO’s efficiency in handling
complaints through IR improved considerably. During the first 11 months
of the pilot programme, the average time for a complaint processed
through IR was reduced by nearly 30% (from an average of 99 days to 71
days). The number of complaints resolved by way of IR also increased by
17%. From the complainants’ perspective, IR can promptly resolve their
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complaints. The Council and CAPO can as a result devote more manpower
and resources to dealing with complaints that are more serious in nature
or require in-depth investigation, and following up on Service Quality
Improvement Initiatives (SQlls) raised by IPCC, so that public resources
can be used more effectively.

Since | took on the role as Chairman, IPCC has continued to firmly uphold
the principles of fairness and impatrtiality in examining complaints, and to
frequently suggest pragmatic SQlls to the police force, aiming to enhance
their services and reduce unnecessary complaints. During the year, |
visited the Police Tactical Unit Headquarters and the Traffic Kowloon West
Operational Base with other Members to look at the implementation
progress of some of the SQlls. We also took these opportunities to
familiarise ourselves with the work of different police units.

BEEEFEMNZE T RFEL R ERE B A FAREEH T FESIBITE B, o
During the year, Council Chairman and Members visited the Police Tactical Unit
Headquarters and the Traffic Kowloon West Operational Base.



BEESRAFERNERRL I9BANSE
& HBRERBENEL  BYERE ¥
CEHF EHHENERE > EEESEM
MR ERFNRFERE LABE
ltt%ﬁé%’?‘iﬁiﬁﬂmfg ZE S IRTHIERE
Bl FREBFIEVNUEX - EHER
BEMATF E&E%&ﬁ%iii@%%ﬁﬂ’ﬂ%% ’
I B nsRiEFl ?%ﬂ%ﬁfﬁ:?)\%i%ﬁ%ﬁ*m}i
BEESERIAET]  INTREEIZMEBI B IS -

EEBRERFUFORERBTEM - SF
—FE-HACHEEEERR EHBAER
HITHBEE TEMNTENRREFTEM
Bl FESRRBHE EEHEY
M BEEEETF BEEZQRETY
BERKXFER > TIREEREENNEE
R ©

BE—F > FNEZEMEFARSEERRBE
FANESHEFIETEFENEE S o 4
LEE > HMLEBRT » SEEHRE
WEAE -~ HIR(EEEGEA) - BEARR
MEAHS TRFEABLMEBRENA
B BREEHFRANERE FFMEAR
HENITIEHERYN  STEEETIME
BRAME] NIEEEFEE - 1£2022/23F
B pfEa EiEE NigEH 61018 »
BEFENL26IETPE 2% M NERE
M) RU3EIER)E 2021 /22 EER 62 IERA
30% > ;:;2022/23&)“5’]4315 gHE
KEZE—DMBEFE > LURFIRFEH
E’J’AT:.#J °

?xEﬂrB%“rﬁ'JﬁZﬁ?&  BEENEEEA

AR e I AEFRFHEE > HBEH
Eﬁzimﬂﬁtﬁb cHAREBEETRHATS
BREERGTHAGHEFE 1914 XER
FERRETHEEMBBERELF &
EEBEIYL E—FPRZETREME R
B FIERED o

During the year, IPCC has made 19 SQlls to the police, covering traffic
enforcement, handling of exhibits, video-recorded interviews, etc. IPCC
has particularly noted the upward trend in complaints involving computer
technology and online fraud in recent years. Hence, during the reporting
period, IPCC recommended that the police enhance the efficiency of
forensic examination on seized digital devices, such as computers and
mobile phones. The police have proactively increased manpower,
upgraded their digital forensics examination system, as well as enhanced
training to develop frontline officers’ abilities in carrying out basic
forensics examination, and speeding up the handling of cyber and
technology crimes.

The overall number of complaints declined last year owing to the
COVID-19 outhreak. As the society returned to normalcy from January to
March this year, the number of complaints arising from daily policing
duties experienced an uptick. These complaints mainly involved traffic
enforcement, handling of street disputes and stop-and-search, etc. IPCC
will continue to closely monitor the complaints trend, and propose
forward-looking and pragmatic SQlls.

Over the past year, Members and | have emphasised at different forums
the importance of complainants’ cooperation in the operation of our
police complaints system. We have taken a multi-pronged approach to
highlight the rights and responsibilities of complainants by hosting
regular media briefings, publishing /PCC Newsletters, reaching out to
various district organisations and holding seminars at a number of
schools. The Council is pleased that, as a result of these civic education
activities, the number of allegations classified as “Not Pursuable” and
“False” has dropped. In 2022/23, the total number of allegations
classified as “Not Pursuable” decreased by 26% to 610 from 826 in the
preceding year; while allegations classified as “False” dropped by
approximately 30% from 62 in 2021/22 to 43 in 2022/23. In the coming
year, the Council will further step up its publicity efforts to enhance public
trust in the complaints system.

IPCC Observers are indispensable for maintaining an effective police
complaints system. They have assisted the Council in the performance of
its statutory functions in a fair and impartial manner. On behalf of the
Council, I would like to express my gratitude to over one hundred IPCC
Observers for attending a total of 1,914 interviews and collection of
evidence conducted by CAPO during the reporting period, representing a
98% attendance rate. Their efforts have served to further boost public
confidence in the two-tier complaints system.

BYHREHRERHFEZER | 2022/23TFRE
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| would also like to extend my heartfelt appreciation to all Council
Members and Secretariat staff for their unwavering commitment to their
duties, and impartial handling of each and every complaint. At the same
time, | also express my gratitude to our retired Members — Ms Ann Au
Chor-kwan, Mr Alex Chu Wing-yiu, Miss Sylvia Lee Hiu-wah, Dr David Lee
Ka-yan, Ms Melissa Kaye Pang, Prof Martin Wong Chi-sang and Mr Johnny
Yu Wah-yung — for their dedication and valuable contributions to IPCC
during their tenure.
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Council Chairman (centre), accompanied by Secretary-General (fourth from left), thanked and bid farewell to
seven retired Members.

BRESARBERIMEN  HEER
IRERITT  ERTRBEARFTER I
BEMANT - HESFVRRAEREMRG
XERE > BFE—RERENERT
BRERF > BLUTHL A% FRE > £1H
o TE B BETREER > AZTBIGE
xR ERBBRIRCERH - EFIRE
BRZUTEEERE  BEBRAEMR 155
BEFAHEERE > HBEBTHERE -

Independent Police Complaints Council | Report 2022/23

Hong Kong is entering a new era of good governance, and all sectors of
the community are striving ahead with perseverance. The police are also
determined to enhance their service quality and enlist a wider range of
talent. When | inspected the Hong Kong Police College’s passing-out
parade earlier this year, | particularly encouraged new police graduates to
be firm, fearless and impartial in combating crime. Yet, when
communicating with the public in daily policing, they should be tactful,
flexible while remaining firm, and make good use of communication skills
to defuse any potential crisis. The police should also make use of multiple
communication channels to reinforce mutual trust with the public,
especially with our young generation, in order to contribute towards Hong
Kong’s progress from stability to prosperity.

0:

-



BEEEFERAFNABEBLERBTIEFEHE
HBEREE ©

Council Chairman inspected the passing-out
parade as Reviewing Officer at the Hong Kong
Police College earlier this year.
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Under the two-tier complaints system, the Council will continue to adhere
to the principle of handling each complaint strictly on the basis of fact and
evidence. We will keep pace with societal developments, make timely and
practical SQlls, and drive changes alongside the police force to enhance
their service quality. This will promote public confidence in the police
complaints system and consolidate the foundation of mutual trust. Last
but not least, IPCC will work together with every sector of the community
to create a better Hong Kong.
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Ming-ming
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Highlights of the Year

FRETIFREINEBERBMAXHMBEIHAE -
Ms Priscilla Wong Pui-sze (Council Chairman) officiated at the Passing Out Parade of
Hong Kong Police College as the Reviewing Officer.

REGEIENSZEISHERRHBEEMRANERBITEBENM > TREZTEIFINERE -
IPCC Chairman and Members visited the Police Tactical Unit Headquarters and the Traffic Kowloon West
Operational Base to understand the operations of various police departments.
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IPCC Chairman and Members attended a networking luncheon with the police management and CAPO representatives
to exchange views on recent complaint trends. After the luncheon, IPCC representatives took part in the Sports Day
hosted by the Police Service Quality Wing.
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IPCC Members and Secretariat staff attended various [EZRIERFERFIE -
meetings with the Fight Crime Committees to introduce IPCC received a delegat|on of Mainland legal officials,
the role and statutory functions of the Council. who participated in the Common Law Training Scheme

organised by the Department of Justice, to explain the
two-tier police complaints system in Hong Kong.

BEEN DHERFEEE) BROSB U bu%ﬁ@ﬁﬁ%%'“%l{ﬁﬂ&uﬁkfféﬁE’Jm i o
IPCC set up an interactive game booth at the Sha Tin District Fight Crime Carnival to promote public
awareness of the Council’s work and the rights and responsibilities of complainants.

BZBETE  BEGNAFENBBEERES > WA LRENH[SIHHOERX
FERL 203558 - $iEE1 7,500 KATLE o
Despite the impact of COVID-19, IPCC continued to promote its School Programme during the year.
Through webinars and in-person visits, IPCC reached more than 7,500 teachers and students in 20 occasions.

Independent Police Complaints Council | Report 2022/23 p 1 r
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Key Statistics (April 2022 — March 2023)

-~

< é
éé éé

e C‘&,
~

<
T

<
N
s

2218 e i
, Percentage of minor

BIBAYIEEE allegations*
Allegations endorsed

£ 1,419

BB AERRIFER

% ’ Reportable Complaint cases
‘ i endorsed ‘
766 /
AR BN RS o
Summary of Notifiable Complaints /
examined 0

HREHELLE
Observers’
attendance rate

*ORMISEEE TR2ET M MTafRE MEXE MEHhEL
Minor allegations include “Neglect of Duty” and “Misconduct/Improper Manner/Offensive Language”.
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Reached out to
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Public enquiries received

Independent Police Complaints Council | Report 2022/23 ; 15 F
“



i

1 ity




FREER

N s ”;
- —' = 2 ":_‘».,/
e ¥ 4




BFEANRERHE

Police Complaints System in Hong Kong
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Hong Kong has adopted a two-tier police complaints system. All complaints
against the police are handled and investigated by the Complaints Against
Police Office (CAPO) of the Hong Kong Police Force. This is the first tier of
the police complaints system.

After CAPO has completed the investigation of a Reportable Complaint, it
will submit the investigation report, together with the relevant files,
documents and materials, to the Independent Police Complaints Council
(IPCQ) for scrutiny.

If any doubt arises in the course of reviewing the investigation reports and
the relevant materials, the IPCC will ask CAPO for clarification or further
information. If the IPCC finds the investigation inadequate, it will request
that the case be further investigated. Only when the IPCC is completely
satisfied that the complaint case has been properly handled will it
endorse the investigation report. This is the second tier of the police
complaints system.

EEgBKRERS
IPCC reviews
investigation reports

KR ER R A E IR RFERE
CAPO investigates
complaints
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55—Z5 Chapter1 | RAMETZE About the IPCC

Hong Kong’s two-tier police complaints system

The advantage of the two-tier system is that it ensures fair and just
handling of complaints against the police. As an independent statutory
body, the IPCC objectively observes, monitors and reviews the handling
and investigation of Reportable Complaints by the Commissioner of
Police, and puts forward opinions and recommendations regarding such
complaints to the Commissioner of Police and the Chief Executive.

1SR E R R IBWAE R R
CAPO receives Reportable Complaints

\

EITRE
Investigations

\A

R ERFRAERS
CAPO submits investigation reports

|

EEgEZAERS
IPCC reviews investigation reports

* CAPO responds to complainant

* Police take appropriate action FISRE
against complainee

* |PCC may offer recommendations to

the Commissioner of Police and/or . A ERGFERBERFES
the Chief Executive on improvement - e A RSRY
to police practices and procedures - R TR EE e S Ests

’
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BIBRELR FREAEER
Agrees with investigation results Disagrees with investigation results
s RFERRLIBERFA - ARFERRERBEBR
c ELARKRFABRNEEITH REELER
c BEENRA RIEERLIEE RN « IPCC seeks clarification or further
BFREBRERMNHTHRRE information from CAPO
REEZR -

Rejects reports

May request CAPO to reinvestigate
complaint

May interview witnesses to clarify
uncertainties

* May raise the case during Working
Level Meetings or Joint IPCC/CAPO
Meetings

Independent Police Complaints Council | Report 2022/23 ; 19 F
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The Role and Functions of the IPCC
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The IPCC was established as a statutory body on 1 June 2009 under the
Independent Police Complaints Council Ordinance (IPCCO) (Cap. 604,
Laws of Hong Kong) to observe, monitor and review the Commissioner of
Police’s handling and investigation of Reportable Complaints against the
Police. With the IPCCO taking effect, the Police have statutory duty to
comply with the IPCCs requests. The Ordinance ensures the
independence of the IPCC in carrying out its monitoring functions.

The IPCC comprises a Chairman, three Vice-Chairmen and not fewer than
eight Members, who are all appointed by the Chief Executive from
different walks of life. This composition enables the IPCC to draw upon the
diverse expertise and experience of its Members to monitor CAPO’s
investigation of complaints in an independent, impartial and thorough
manner. As of 31 March 2023, the IPCC comprises 19 Members.

BUERLEHREBRFEER | 2022/23T1FkE
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(BEZEEREGNEFEE TN FEEREMT
The main functions of the IPCC under the IPCCO are:

B RN B R ER R kR = EIENAS A 0E R R TIE
To observe, monitor and review the handling and investigation of
Reportable Complaints by the Commissioner of Police

ERETHEERERESCHFENEBERKFRERNEHB A SR
H17E)

To monitor actions taken or to be taken in respect of any police officer
by the Commissioner of Police in connection with Reportable
Complaints

HREEE RS R NIZT F 5 EErl e 5| BB BE R FraVTAK B
RNEZ B

To identify any fault or deficiency in police practices or procedures
that has led to or might lead to Reportable Complaints

BEBEREEN,HITHREERMABERKLAERNRREN 5
bE S

To advise the Commissioner of Police and/or the Chief Executive of its
opinions and/or recommendations in connection with Reportable
Complaints

M8 AREH B E F A BAIEEH
To promote public awareness of the role of the Council

Independent Police Complaints Council | Report 2022/23
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Monitoring Procedures of the IPCC
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ETHRERSH, RAARKESE

HEEERNERD

EEEMERE
IPCC Secretariat

RIFERER

EEglss
CAPO and IPCC Observers

Under the two-tier police complaints system, after an investigation report
of a Reportable Complaint is submitted by CAPO to the IPCC, the
Secretariat will conduct a preliminary examination and may raise Queries
and ask for clarification or further information from CAPO. If the Secretariat
has no Query, the report will be submitted to Members for scrutiny.
Members can raise further Queries and discuss the case with CAPO at
Working Level Meetings or Joint Meetings if necessary.

The IPCC also administers an Observers Scheme (please refer to page 25
for details) to enhance its monitoring function and ensure that interviews
and collection of evidence are conducted by CAPO in a fair and impartial
manner during the investigation process. In addition, the IPCC may decide
on a case-by-case basis to interview complainants, complainees,
witnesses or other persons concerned with a view to assisting Members in
understanding the complaints and clarifying any doubt. Both powers
enable the IPCC to perform its statutory functions more effectively.

If the IPCC’s final decision is not to endorse the investigation results of a
particular case, it may disclose the disagreement with CAPO over the
findings to the Chief Executive and/or the public.

BEEEES
IPCC Members g

HEeHEs
IPCC Observer

BN WIRERA

Complainant / Complainee

KRFERRAER
CAPO Officer

. REEBRRETHERNREREN AT RERRFMETHNEEM BB ETE -
Note: IPCC Observers may attend interviews and site visits to observe the collection of evidence by CAPO for investigation of Reportable Complaints.

BUGRESRBRFEER | 2022/23T1FRS
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RIFERE

ELEENEE
CAPO IPCC Secretariat

EZeZERHES
IPCC Members and
Observers

NEEZ

[ e
Vetting

Complaint received

l

EITRE
Investigation

fRLEH

Raise Queries

I -

STRAE LS

3 Hmastal
Observers Scheme

ZEMERHBIZAERS
—> Vetting shared by three Sub-groups

RLEH BEHEA

BERESRREEY
Investigation
completed and
investigation report
submitted to the IPCC

BERMEZEN
Clarification/Provide
more information

EE RS IR SRR
FREREBRIEEEEE

Raise Queries No Query

EEaen

IPCC Interview

HEFEE—LEZ
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EERNEE
IPCC Interview

BT EZBERSIN > BEEGHIERE  |n addition to reviewing investigation reports, the IPCC may ask for
EEBEFAALEE > LUBBEEE - BEEE  interviews with persons related to the case to clarify matters. The IPCC
AU REMEHNBAERETEDEEZEEIRE  may interview any person who may provide relevant information or
HERSEMBEOAL > B5FKFA Y assistance, including complainants, complainees, witnesses, or other
WA S BAREMBIALE - independent persons.

Complainant
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H v\
IR A
Complainee
Wltness

8
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Hith®iz AL
Other independent
person
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Observers Scheme
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OBSERVERS

55— Chapter1 | BAREEZE About the IPCC

In accordance with IPCCO, IPCC administers an Observers Scheme to
strengthen its monitoring function. Under the Scheme, IPCC Members and
Observers may attend interviews and site visits to observe the collection
of evidence in connection with CAPO’s investigation of Reportable
Complaints. The observations can be carried out on a pre-arranged basis
or without appointment.

Appointed by the Secretary for Security, IPCC Observers are drawn from a
wide spectrum of society. They serve on a voluntary basis.

The role of an IPCC Observer is primarily to observe and report. Observers
must maintain the highest standard of integrity and remain neutral and
impartial during observation, without participating in or interfering with
the collection of evidence or conduct of interviews. After each
observation, Observers will advise IPCC whether or not the interview or
collection of evidence was conducted in a fair and impartial manner.
Should any irregularities be reported, IPCC will take up the matter with
CAPO.

Complainants can tell CAPO if they wish an IPCC Observer to be present
during their interview with CAPO. IPCC will endeavour to arrange for an
Observer to be present. All information acquired in the course of
observations will be kept confidential.

BE2023F3A318

"/;r A

JII:L-:. E /\§12O%%ﬁ
As of 31 March 2023, there are 0

120 IPCC Observers.
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BEREmNZEE Appointment of Observers

BRELGHREERHRETBERAESZMT - A  IPCC Observers are appointed by the Secretary for Security. To ensure
RERENDT > (BFZEZHEAGINE331K5T  their impartiality, Section 33 of IPCCO stipulates that the following

m =

AU T ALHRERESEABERES ! persons are NOT eligible for appointment as Observers:

1. TEBNBERBHEPIREZFHFBACR 1. A person who holds an office of emolument, whether permanent or
mERRIEREE) WAL temporary, in a Government bureau or department

2. BEEHPER - AEBERBZEMEM 2. The Secretary-General, the Legal Adviser or any other employee of
(== the Council

3. BEEBRMEMAL 3. Aformer member of the police force

6

Beenua
IPCC Ob
WA WIREA server

Complainant / Complainee

RIFERREAS
CAPO Officer

BUERLEHREBRFEER | 2022/23T1FkE



55— Chapter1 | BAREEZE About the IPCC

IR FER R EE:
Joint Meetings: IPCC and CAPO

ZENMRHFERRGTHEITZ=EBRE  The IPCC and CAPO conduct quarterly Joint Meetings to discuss matters
& mRITERNERAEE ° relating to police complaints.

Be

oo

@z
=]

ATBERTETHREEGZMNIIF B/FEE  To enable the public to better understand the work of the IPCC, part of
ERBRFERBDETRREESEE - BFE  each Joint Meeting is open to the public and the media. The dates and
ERNBPANZEZEERIRAINEZER  agenda of the Joint Meetings are published in advance on the IPCC
WEAM > RERDGENGHLCEITE  website. Minutes of the open part of each meeting are also uploaded to
EHERRE ML (www.ipcc.gov.hk) ° the IPCC website (www.ipcc.gov.hk).
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Reportable Complaints and Notifiable Complaints

AR

MREHRKT RETRMEENEF AR
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TR FERE  HESRRERBRNIEZRF
P RHAIAESIRRFHNREIFTEZ
BR o AAERRENEERE -

Reportable Complaints

“Reportable Complaints” refer to complaints lodged by members of the
public that are not vexatious or frivolous and are made in good faith, and
are pertinent to the conduct of police officers while on duty or who
identify themselves as police officers while off duty. The complaint should
be made by or on behalf of a person directly affected by the alleged
misconduct.

CAPO must submit investigation reports to the IPCC for scrutiny pursuant
to the Ordinance. In the event that any fault or deficiency in the police
practices or procedures that has led to or might lead to complaint is
identified during the course of case vetting, the IPCC may make
recommendations to the Force for service improvement.
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Notifiable Complaints

“Notifiable Complaints” are complaints not categorised as “Reportable
Complaints”. These include anonymous complaints or complaints lodged
by persons who are not directly affected by the case.

CAPO must regularly submit a list of “Notifiable Complaints” with brief
description to the IPCC for examination. If the IPCC considers any of these
cases to be “Reportable Complaints”, the IPCC may raise with CAPO, and
CAPO will reconsider the categorisation of the complaint. Moreover, the
IPCC may request CAPO to submit further explanation or supporting
information in relation to the categorisation of any particular complaint.

According to the IPCCO, complaints relating to the following matters are
neither Reportable Complaints nor Notifiable Complaints, and they are not
dealt with under the two-tier complaints system.

e Complaints arising from the issue of summons or imposition of fixed
penalty, which solely relate to the validity of the issue

e Complaints lodged by a person in his official capacity as a member
of the police force

Complaints that fall under the scope of investigation of other
statutory bodies
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Classification of Investigation Results

—RERFESR—IBHZN—IERIEE -
FEERFERREAAER > TRES

BRERDEATIREZ— !

A complaint may consist of one or more allegations. After CAPO has
conducted a full and thorough investigation into an allegation, it will be
classified as one of the following six types according to the findings:

2 REERIR
{H:EEAEE

3 mETRE
AR

4 mEEE

WMAERFARENRAEZELS > BREMMERFRS
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Substantiated Other An allegation is classified as “Substantiated Other Than Reported”
when matters other than the original allegations raised by the
Than Reported complainant, which are closely associated with the complaint and

have a major impact on the investigation, have been discovered and
are found to be substantiated.

Not Fuuy An allegation is classified as “Not Fully Substantiated” when there is
. some reliable evidence to support the allegation made by the

Substantiated complainant, but is insufficient to fully substantiate the complaint.

Unsubstantiated An allegation is classified as “Unsubstantiated” when there is insufficient

evidence to support the allegation made by the complainant.
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Other Complaint Classifications
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Some complaints are handled by other means so that full investigation is
not necessary. These complaints can be classified as:

M&ERHE) RISRFANTHEIESR °
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Withdrawn A complaint is classified as “Withdrawn” when the complainant does not wish to
pursue the complaint after making it.

Even when a complainant withdraws a complaint, the IPCC will ensure that the
complainant has made the decision voluntarily.

A complainant’s withdrawal does not necessarily result in the case being classified as
“Withdrawn”. The IPCC and CAPO will examine the evidence available to ascertain
whether full investigation is warranted despite the withdrawal and/or whether any of
the allegations are substantiated on the basis of information available.

Not Pursuable An allegation is classified as “Not Pursuable” when:

» The identity of the officer in the complaint cannot be ascertained
» The cooperation of the complainant cannot be obtained to proceed with the
investigation

The above definition does not mean that no further action will be taken when the
complainant cannot identify the complainee. CAPO will make every effort to identify
the complainee(s) on the basis of the information available. Only after such effort fails
will the conclusion be reached that the identity of the complainee cannot be
ascertained.

Even though the officer in question remains unidentified or the complainant fails to
render assistance, the IPCC and CAPO will examine the evidence available to ascertain
whether full investigation is warranted and/or whether any of the allegations are
substantiated on the basis of information available.

Curtailed A complaint is classified as “Curtailed” when it has been registered with CAPO but is
curtailed — i.e. not fully investigated — on the authorisation of the Chief Superintendent
(Complaints and Internal Investigations Branch), owing to special circumstances such as
known mental condition of the complainant.

Informally The “Informal Resolution Scheme” aims at speedy resolution of minor complaints,
such as allegations of impoliteness or use of offensive language, the nature of which
Resolved is considered relatively minor.

A minor complaint suitable for Informal Resolution will not be subject to full
investigation. Instead, a senior officer of at least the rank of Chief Inspector of Police
will act as Conciliating Officer and make separate enquiries with the complainant and
the complainee regarding the facts of the complaint. If the Conciliating Officer is
satisfied that the matter is suitable for Informal Resolution and the complainant
agrees, the complaint will be informally resolved.

According to IPCCO, there is no procedure for review once a complaint has been dealt
with by way of “Informally Resolved”.
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History of the IPCC

1974
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1986

UMELCO Police Group

The establishment of the IPCC can be traced back to 1974 when the then
Commissioner of Police set up CAPO to investigate police complaints from
the public. Having considered that the investigations should involve an
independent body, the Commissioner of Police invited the sub-committee
of the Unofficial Members of the Executive and Legislative Councils
(UMELCO), which was responsible for handling police and security
matters, to monitor CAPO complaint investigations in 1977. This was the
prototype of the two-tier police complaints system. In 1978, the UMELCO
Police Group presented its first report on police complaints to the then
Governor (reporting period from 1 September 1977 to 30 April 1978),
which was then submitted to the Legislative Council for review on 16
August 1978. From then on, the UMELCO Police Group prepared an
annual progress report.

After the UMELCO Police Group was established, there was a drastic
increase in the number of police complaints which required its
monitoring. The heavy workload indicated that there was a need to
strengthen and broaden the structure of the monitoring system.
Consequently, the Government set up a working group to review the
UMELCO Police Group’s monitoring of CAPO in early 1984.

RFEREEEREZST

1986 £ » BUNERRHTZTIE T 1F/\HAVE
#% > HERNBERTRILEMBIFE
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Police Complaints Committee

In 1986, after the Government had meticulously reviewed the working
group’s recommendations, the then Governor restructured the UMELCO
Police Group and set up an independent police complaints monitoring
committee, comprising Justices of the Peace as members and a
supporting secretariat. It was also renamed as the Police Complaints
Committee.
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55—Z5 Chapter1 | RAMETZE About the IPCC
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2004-2009

Independent Police Complaints Council —
before becoming a statutory body

In December 1994, the Committee was further revamped to pave the way
for an independent statutory body with specific powers and functions.
Both the English and Chinese names of the Council were modified to
better reflect its independence.

A Bill with proposals for transforming the then IPCC into a statutory body
was introduced to the Legislative Council in July 1996. The Bill proposed
clarifying the powers and functions of the then IPCC in order to reinforce
its authority for handling police complaints and enhance public
awareness of the Council as an independent monitoring entity.

As some former Legislative Council Members raised a number of
Committee Stage Amendments that might bring fundamental changes to
the police complaints system, the Bill was withdrawn by the Government
on 23 June 1997.
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Independent Police Complaints Council —
after becoming a statutory body

In 2004, the Government relaunched its plan to transform the then IPCC
into a statutory body with a view to empowering it with a legal basis to
discharge its functions and raise public confidence in the two-tier police
complaints system. On 29 June 2007, the Independent Police Complaints
Council Bill was gazetted. The Bill was tabled at the Legislative Council on
11 July 2007 for First Reading.

The Legislative Council passed the IPCCO in July 2008. The Secretary for
Security then decided that the IPCCO would come into effect on 1 June
2009 and the IPCC would become a statutory body on the same date. The
Chinese name of the Council was modified to highlight its independent
monitoring role while the English name was retained.
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AERE RIEEHT

Number of Investigation Reports and Allegations

r

\

\
EERBBRNAERS FERSF
Number of Reportable Complaint cases received and endorsed

2022/23 2021/22

BERAERKFEZR
Reportable Complaint cases received 1 ’413 1,590
BBy A I A E S
Reportable Complaint cases endorsed 1’419 1,705

J

TERREAAN (2022F48B1HE2023F
3A31R) EESTHEERFERR
LA13 M AERKFERNFAERS
BEFLD11.1%

EHY > BREGBIBT 1,419 RAEBRKF
BRNFAEER (BF 47 RBRER) » &
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During the reporting period (1 April 2022 to 31 March 2023), the IPCC
received reports from CAPO on the investigation of 1,413 new Reportable
Complaint cases, representing a decrease of 11.1% compared to the
previous year.

In the same period, the IPCC endorsed the results of investigation for
1,419 Reportable Complaint cases (including 47 reviewed cases),
representing a decrease of 16.8% compared to the previous year. There
were a total of 2,218 allegations excluding the reviewed cases,
representing a decrease of 19.3% compared to the previous year. The top
three allegations in descending order were “Neglect of Duty”,
“Misconduct/Improper Manner/Offensive Language” and “Assault”.

After IPCC’s meticulous examination, a total of 81 counts of “Neglect
of Duty” allegation (7.8% of this allegation) were classified as
“Substantiated”, “Substantiated Other Than Reported” or “Not Fully
Substantiated” (S/SOTR/NFS), while 17 counts (1.8% of these
allegations) of “Misconduct/Improper Manner/Offensive Language”
allegation and zero count (0% of this allegation) of “Assault” allegation
were classified as S/SOTR/NFS respectively (please refer to pages 42 to
43 for detailed figures).
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BENIEEHT (BUEESEB) IR TR !
The following chart shows details of the number of allegations endorsed (by nature):

4 )
EEgiBIBIEE
Allegations endorsed by the IPCC
B 2022/23 f5=4a% 2 21 Il 2021/22 $5iE4E8 2 7 47
Total number of allegations () Total number of allegations ()
ER7BB<T 1,033 46.6%
Neglect of Duty 1,169 42.6%
TATE/ 942 42.5%
REREXE/ B SWE 1,307 47.6%
Misconduct/
Improper Manner/
Offensive Language
BRFT . 137 6.2%
A 19 4.3% = - - X
ssalt 743 WA TEEEEE \ [RCRR(EE
BEl 3 miT2ERREE) isEsE
N . it Number of allegations classified as
EE 0,
s AR l73 ki Top three “Substantiated”, “Substantiated Other Than
Unnecessary Use 106 3.9% allegations Reported” or “Not Fully Substantiated”
of Authority
Bt/ BR T 81 (153215 HEH9T.8%)
TR I 20 0.9% Neglect of Duty (7.8% of this allegation)
Threat 20 0.7%
TARE BEX
EVE T e
1BIESETE 12 0.5% Misconduct/ 17 (Tﬁi&$aEE’91.8%) .
L ) X Improper Manner/ (1.8% of these allegations)
Fabrication of Evidence 22 0.8% prop
Offensive Language
EBEF  [10% BT 0 (ammEEson
Police Procedures 0 0% Assault (0% of this allegation)
o * SN F A2 RME425243H ©
HthIE1T 0 0% \* Please refer to pages 42 to 43 for figures of other allegations.
Other Offences | 4 0.1%
51 L HRNERE B9 R RTAER 2 2100% ©
FEEHFTHEZFEMN3IA3LE °
Note: Percentage shares may not add up to exactly 100% due to rounding of figures.
Figures are as of 31 March of the respective reporting year.
\_
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Investigation Results
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Among the 2,218 allegations endorsed in 2022/23, 554 were fully
investigated. 52 (9.4% of those fully investigated) were classified as
“Substantiated”, 45 (8.1%) as “Substantiated Other Than Reported”, 3
(0.5%) as “Not Fully Substantiated”, 177 (32.0%) as “Unsubstantiated”,
234 (42.2%) as “No Fault”, and 43 (7.8%) as “False”.

Among the remaining 1,664 allegations which did not require full
investigation, 389 (23.4% of those not fully investigated) were “Informally
Resolved”, 665 (40.0%) were classified as “Withdrawn”, 610 (36.6%) as
“Not Pursuable”. There was no allegation classified as “Curtailed”.
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2021/22F02022/23 FENATEREBIFLLETRE TR ¢
The following table shows a comparison of figures regarding investigation results in 2021/22 and 2022/23:

4 )
EEgIBBNRES
Investigation results endorsed by the IPCC
I 2022/23 $5#=4Eg 2 21 8 Il 2021/22 i5#48% 2 7 47
Total number of allegations 9 Total number of allegations 9
PR E 52 9.4% B2 EBEWISE
Substantiated 83 9.4% Allegations that required full investigation
2022/23 2021/22
RITBIREEPEE 45 8.1% 554 881
Substantiated Other 445.0%
Than Reported
AT REREE 3 0.5%
Not Fully Substantiated 6 0.7%
Unsubstantiated 289 32.8%
No Fault 397 45.1%
ERARE 437.8%
False 62 7.0%
EEHER R 389 23.4%
Informally Resolved 335 18.0%
KEFiE] 665 40.0%
Withdrawn 705 37.8%
Not Pursuable 826 44.2%
EEEITREATHIEE
i REUEE 0 B RMAARIRTAER SN2 100% o Allegations that did not require full investigation
FEHFHEZFEN3IA3IA ° 2022/23 2021/22
Note: Percentage may not add up to exactly 100% due to rounding of figures.
Figures are as of 31 March of the respective reporting year. 1 9 66"I 1 9 8 6 6
. J

J »
Independent Police Complaints Council | Report 2022/23 41 r



EEFRBNAERFEZNEEHTF REEENAEZEERE2)
Number of allegations involved in the Reportable Complaint cases endorsed by the IPCC
(by nature and by results of investigations)

- EIEXNE HE %-E = 2
Ne ﬁ%ﬁﬁgut Misconduct/ Affﬂlt Unnecessary Use
g y Improper Manner/ of Authority
Offensive Language

{7 Year 2022/23 2021/22 2022/23 2021/22 2022/23 2021/22 2022/23 2021/22
L2 MmAERIFEIE Allegations that required full investigation
HEAER
Substantiated 36 52 14 26 0 3 2 2
REQEBIR
{B:8EREE
Substantiated 44 41 1 3 0 0 0 0
Other Than
Reported
EETREREE
Not Fully 1 2 2 1 0 0 0 1
Substantiated
AR
Unsubstantiated 49 97 106 159 14 16 7 15
No Fault 159 244 37 103 2 11 35 38
ERTTE
False 6 7 12 25 17 10 1 0
et 295 443 172 317 33 40 45 56
Subtotal

EEEITREAEAHSIE Allegations that did not require full investigation

EBAES R ARA

el 158 113 231 222 0 0 0 0
Resolved

SR HE

s 339 325 280 349 34 23 4 3
ErEs

e oo 241 288 259 419 70 56 24 47
it 738 726 770 990 104 79 28 50

Subtotal

1,169
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\
L EEER L H 54T L
Threat Evi Police Procedures Other Offences Total
vidence
2022/23 2021/22 2022/23 2021/22 2022/23 2021/22 2022/23 2021/22  2022/23 2021/22

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 52 83
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 45 44
0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 3 6
0 1 1 1 0 0 0 0 177 289
0 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 234 397
2 4 5 15 0 0 0 1 43 62
2 5 6 18 1 0 0 2 554 881
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 389 335
5 4 3 0 0 0 0 1 665 705
13 11 3 4 0 0 0 1 610 826
18 15 6 4 0 0 0 2 1,664 1,866
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Police Actions Against Defaulting Officers

TARSFEEREZEGBBENMEZES > £ During the reporting year, actions were taken against 102 police officers
BI2REHFANEREZRETE > P& regarding 69 cases endorsed by the IPCC. The following table shows the
69 RMEZE - nIEHFR T ! breakdown of figures:

(" )
E7552021/22 %2022 /23 FEMEE BB FEZR

MERNERHASEITH

Police actions taken against defaulting officers

regarding cases endorsed by the IPCC during 2021/22 and 2022/23

A B ZH Number of officers

2022/23 2021/22
A MR 71
Criminal proceedings
B 2RER >
Disciplinary review
C EfttAE1T
Other internal actions
£& Wamings 34
38 Advice 96
4821 Total 102 139

1! tEREBABDNIERMTHERG - B MBEBAERN 2019 FEILEEREEKERA TMERF > Wik 2020F
WHITABABITAKRE IR ; BZ—Faf > AZEBASRR2014FEPIREE—Z 25 (GEEHHREA TMmERLT
2017 ER R TEREIERSREGEE fl IEREBE) B o TAIERATER » RAERRAEREHAET » 2T EE
BATHRAERS » LRXFEEGEZ

Note 1: Seven police officers were involved in two separate criminal cases. In one case, two police officers were charged with
assaulting a detainee in the North District Hospital in 2019 and convicted of “Misconduct in Public Office” in 2020. In the
other case, five police officers were charged with assaulting an Occupy Movement protester in Central in 2014 and
convicted of “Assault Occasioning Actual Bodily Harm” and “Common Assault” respectively in 2017. After conclusion of the
criminal proceedings, CAPO re-opened the complaint investigation and submitted the investigation reports with reference
to the court’s rulings to the IPCC for examination.
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Queries Raised with CAPO
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The IPCC raised a total of 941 Queries with CAPO in 2022/23. These
Queries included various requests to CAPO, for example, amending the
content of investigation reports, and providing more information and
clarification regarding the reports. The IPCC also made improvement
recommendations on the police practices and procedures.

Pursuant to the IPCCO, CAPO must reply to IPCC’s Queries. When the IPCC
receives responses from CAPO, the vetting teams will scrutinise the
information, explanation and views before passing them to Members of
Vetting Sub-groups for consideration. The IPCC may raise follow-up
Queries regarding the same matters or bring up the matters to Working
Level Meetings for further discussion with CAPQ. Investigation reports will
be endorsed only when the IPCC is satisfied with CAPO’s explanation.

During the reporting period, there were 574 Queries requiring further
actions. The remaining Queries were satisfactorily resolved upon
clarification or explanation by CAPO.

Independent Police Complaints Council | Report 2022/23
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The following table shows the breakdown of figures regarding Queries raised by the IPCC:
4 )
=EIECE REBFIRENTSH
Total number of Queries 9 4 1 Number of Queries 5 7 4
requiring further actions
SEBFIRENEN
Hiay . Number of Queries
Total number of Queries .. .
requiring further actions
E 3144 Nature of Queries
REGRAE
Classification of 377 209
investigation results
HEEKRERNEFRNESR
Recommended improvements to 19 24 24
police practices and procedures
BREBEANER
Compliance with police practices 10 8 2
and procedures
TEERIER
Reasons for exercising 6 1
police power
HEERERABNTEHREER
Comments on actions 16 17 12
against defaulting officers
BEREREEH
Clarification of information 663 431
in investigation reports
AEERME
Investigation thoroughness 132 73
HithE:H
Other Queries - >/ 36
ECE
Total 941 1,284 574 788
. J
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MBS RE Classification of investigation results

BEFE2022/23FEMBELERDIBIR A total of 227 Queries were raised by the IPCC in 2022/23 regarding the
H22715EH > MEHFERRFTEH/IERE  classification of investigation results, of which 113 required further
ENEHEF 11318 FHILFUESTFAZE  actions by CAPO and consequently the investigation results of 116
ERWNIEER 11618 81F - allegations were reclassified, including:

.

4 )
- i s MEEAE R
reclassified y . > « . "
from Unsubstantiated to Substantiated
= Mt B BT M :RAE
reclassified . It ? “Sub iated”
from No Fault to Substantiate
® ssified S CE N NEEAEE
from “Not Pursuable” to “Substantiated”

]_ = ssified R N EREERE
from “Withdrawn” to “Substantiated”
= b B 3 melm MELEE
reclassified . it ? @ b iated”
from No Fault to Unsubstantiate
"o MESAEE ) HElE r it i gE
reclassified B b ated” ? @ 1t
from Unsubstantiate to No Fault
= E=SES Ry LN r it i gE
reclassified » ble” 7 @ 1t
from Not Pursuable to No Fault
= MESAEE ) AN I (B AR EE
reclassified . b ated” ? “False”
from Unsubstantiate to False
= E=3ES Ry 2elks I (B B
reclassified w ble” 7 “False”
from Not Pursuable to False
"o M wim e ) 2olks I B AR
reclassified . N 7 “ ”
from No Fault to False
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The following table shows the breakdown of figures regarding changes of classification:

4 )
2022/23 FEEEFBANKEITTELER
Changes of classification endorsed by the IPCC in 2022/23

% &% 48 Final classification

, mERE s

T LK 7 & o
e MEEER REER  RHER  LREH EEFE 0T gRmE e

g e Substantiated  Not Fully  Unsubstantiated  No Fault False Withdrawn Total
classification . Pursuable

Substantiated
ERARE
Substantiated N/A 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
AR E
BREE
Not Fully 1 N/A 0 0 0 0 0 1
Substantiated
UEEH 8 1 N/A 21 1 4 4 39
Unsubstantiated
No Fault 4 0 20 N/A 2 6 5 37
ERAE
False 0 0 0 3 N/A 0 1 4
mAEE
Not Pursuable 5 0 2 12 10 N/A 1 30
el
Withdrawn 1 0 0 4 0 0 N/A 5
LS
Total 19 1 22 40 13 10 11 116
\. Y,

b5 BREEFREIB T 4518 TREAEHKR  Moreover, the IPCC endorsed 45 counts of “Substantiated Other Than
BEPBE) VBT EFANEEKE  Reported” allegations, nine of which were registered after the IPCC raised
LHREEHBRMIEMN - ZE25"%F  Queries. Another 25 incidents were recorded as “Outwith” matters*.
etk A S EE o

* IELHRE REAMERCENERBSHNEE SLEFEAATHBREPRKEE  BREREFANBSLEEZYIR G o
* An “Outwith” matter refers to any breach of discipline or police force orders that has been disclosed in the course of complaint investigation but
is not closely related to the complaint.
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Recommended improvements to police practices and
procedures

Under section 8(1)(c) of the IPCCO, the IPCC may make recommendations
to the Commissioner of Police and/or the Chief Executive if it identifies
any fault or deficiency in the police practices or procedures that has led to
or might lead to complaint. During the reporting period, the IPCC
suggested 19 improvement measures to the police.

BREZERMERF

BEEERRRFAERRITHESR > UEE
B EZD RBVEH A EETEBER
EEEEBUERERBERNIER - REH
W BREENEARE 108

Compliance with police practices and procedures

The IPCC may raise Queries with CAPO to ascertain whether the police
officers involved in a complaint have complied with relevant police
practices and procedures in exercising their constabulary powers. During
the reporting period, 10 Queries were raised under this category.

TEEHENIEH

EEETHIEBAEERDFHNERE
e REHPRN > BETREFAERER
ERFHNIERREDDIRES °

Reasons for exercising police powers

The use of police powers by officers in the discharge of their duties is a
concern to the IPCC. During the reporting period, the IPCC raised five
Queries in respect of reasons for the use of police powers.

HEREERASHTHRLEER

HAMEFASELIAIRNACRITE
BEFREREROBE  EEESNDIME
KRR ERMTHRIER > fI01TH
EEEBEERMBANEEILES - REW
M EEEENEREREL 1678HH -

Comments on actions against defaulting officers

While the dispensing of advice or disciplinary action against police
officers is a matter for the Commissioner of Police, the IPCC will examine
the actions taken or to be taken to ascertain whether they are
commensurate with the seriousness of the offences. The IPCC raised 16
Queries on such actions during the reporting period.

A B S R A

BEMRN > EEARBFBERENTH
AT 0 FRBUT 474BHE > Bl
BRBFERRRBFNERRHESH
o

Clarification of information in investigation reports

During the reporting period, the IPCC raised 474 Queries regarding
ambiguous points in the investigation reports. In such cases, CAPO was
requested to provide more background information on the complaints.

REERE

BERN BEESHRERIL3EARRAD
BRIZENEGH > ERRFERRMLS
BEHRIMERARNTE > flI0E RE AN
EFZRBEF -

Independent Police Complaints Council | Report 2022/23

Investigation thoroughness

During the reporting period, the IPCC raised 143 Queries regarding the
thoroughness of police investigations. These Queries included requests to
CAPO for more in-depth investigation by conducting interviews with
witnesses and collection of more evidence.
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Observers Scheme

2022/23 AR BEK 1 91 5 2021/22 R
Total number of observation 9 Total number of observation 1 ,848

4 )
AR ESEHRRNDIEHF HzamMEEREIENRIEHRF
Number of scheduled observation and Number of observation of interviews and
observation without appointment collection of evidence
2022/23 2021/22 2022/23 2021/22
TEScZHE Rz am
Scheduled 1,905 L9 Interviews 1,427 1,443
S IE L BRI E
;E.’"I%E”‘l] . 10 16 Collection of 488 405
Without appointment .
evidence
48l Total 1,848 4820 Total 1,848
g J

2022/23FE > FEGNLZERBREH
ETT L9 RERE > WAF LA3.6%
ERFEARLZHRE 1,905 R > REFEOH
BIOX - E1,915KR|EF > 51,427 R
EHREH > HR4ISSRNEERERWE
T E o

Under the Observers Scheme, 1,915 observation sessions were
conducted by Members and Observers of the IPCC in the year 2022/23,
representing an increase of 3.6% compared to the previous year. Among
them, 1,905 were scheduled observation sessions and 10 were
conducted without appointment. Out of the 1,915 observation sessions,
1,427 involved the conduct of interviews and 488 involved the collection
of evidence.

BYHREHRERHFEZER | 2022/23TFRE
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r
BmElFERREEENNET

and notification received

HEEREZ Observation attended
5 EEH Notification received

HFELEE (R igmiEm)

Number of observation attended by IPCC Observers

Attendance rate (Observation/Notification received)

2022/23 2021/22

1,915 1,848

1,864

99.1%

RFERREGBETUTHNERT » NE
TEEAEBBRERER > GFEEEFALRN
48NBFEIBH 0 TE2022/23FE > BRE
TREKHFERR1953 @A -

EARRERN > BEESHREHEFE T 1,915
RER > QEBEREENZBENE  HE
FRIBARY98.1% » WELERMAT—FEE

CAPO has agreed that, as practicable, the IPCC will be notified at least 48
hours in advance of any impending interview or collection of evidence. In
2022/23, 1,953 counts of notification were received from CAPO.

During the reporting period, IPCC Observers attended 1,915 observation
sessions, including interviews and collection of evidence, amounting to
98.1% of the notification received. The attendance rate is similar to that
of the previous year.

Independent Police Complaints Council | Report 2022/23 p
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-
A REF
Number of Notifiable Complaints

B EERRNRN G R

Notifiable Complaints examined by the IPCC

SMEEEAAERKR
Re-categorised as Reportable Complaint

2022/23 2021/22

690

RB(EEFRAD FOF > RFERERA
EHMEEGRIHA AN Tk HE
BYF R AR > W RRRZIGFBES
ANEKRFNER EEETRLHERR
AR AR EERARFER
A EHARERESE  RFERIATREMN
BRI

RSN EEFRAT 766 RANE
RIFEE > REAFRP LA 11.0% &
BELEmRE RAERIABELETES
REP—RRFEN RS AERRS

Under section 9 of the IPCCO, CAPO must regularly submit a list of
Notifiable Complaints with brief description to the IPCC for examination
and explain the reasons for categorising the complaints as Notifiable
Complaints. If the IPCC considers that any of these complaints should be
classified as Reportable Complaints instead, the IPCC will make
suggestions to CAPO accordingly. CAPO will then need to reconsider the
categorisation.

During the reporting period, brief description of 766 Notifiable Complaints
were examined by the IPCC, representing an increase of 11.0% compared
to the previous year. After examination by the IPCC, CAPO re-categorised
one case as Reportable Complaint on the IPCC's recommendation.
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IPCC Interviews Conducted
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Public Enquiries
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According to section 20 of the IPCCO, in the course of examining CAPO’s
investigation reports, the IPCC may interview any person who is or may be
able to provide information or assistance to the Council in relation to the
investigation reports. While CAPO maintains its investigative role, the
purpose of IPCC interview is to clarify matters with the concerned persons
to obtain more comprehensive understanding of evidence and
circumstances.

In order to enhance transparency, the IPCC has set up various channels for
the public to make enquiry or express their opinions. During the reporting
period, the IPCC received 5,304 public enquiries via telephone, post,
email, fax and in person. Enquiries relating to the work of IPCC were
handled in accordance with the timeframe specified under the IPCC's
performance pledge.
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Recommended Improvements

REBE(EEERA) > EAKRTERE  EER
MEBRESTRENFAERERRFNT
B> TMEREREENEZEZFTD > BB
ERERAEF I FUERM T > BB
MRBEARNEEZ (AEER)KE > @
EHERRIVBAITHRERZ - &BE
TH2009FMABILEERBES B
ERMELRHBB20ENEREZ -5
R ERERAMEREAREIR LRA
RBER > BOADENRS > LMNRA
BREWERFRIENED

BEHR > EHAHIRH 19BN ERE
REOCOEOC/R| WEAENERHE -
BoATRNBEEERERY > U2
BIERBHEMBFLENRERF ; 80W
RHRER  SEERE S ERAEMES
REMES R > LUEAZEE TIFHIN
RMEEN ; DR EBBRIGMEFNT
ERER > MBREFABSTRITEBREY
BREBROEES -

UTREZEGNRHREHANRE T RZHAR
BEHRNSEZRLF

(1) REERALMIBEFIBINER
mESRBITEREER KR

(2) REREEHEEEFONE

(3) BPRIEMKRHE BT ETEI KEN
2R

(4) BRESZERERBESERY

(5) REFNGEFSAEBZBETERRSE
i

BIZRERS
Review investigation
reports

&

HRHERIEER

Under the Independent Police Complaints Council Ordinance (IPCCO),
apart from observing, monitoring and reviewing the police’s handling and
investigation of Reportable Complaints, the IPCC also actively identifies
areas for improvement in police practices and procedures through a
rigorous vetting process, and makes timely and practical suggestions for
improvement to the police through the Service Quality Improvement
Initiative (SQII) mechanism. Since its establishment as an independent
statutory body in 2009, the Council has made more than 220 SQlls to the
police. Each SQIl has contributed to the enhanced service quality of the
police in different aspects, and thus the reduction of unnecessary
complaints, while strengthening public confidence in the two-tier
complaints system.

During the reporting period, a total of 19 SQlls were put forward [please
refer to pages 66—67 for details], covering various policing areas — some
of which are closely related to the daily lives of the public, such as
optimising traffic enforcement and stop-and-search procedures; while
some are related to the use of technology, including recommendations to
make good use of computer forensic equipment and body-worn video
cameras, thereby enhancing the efficiency and accuracy of policing work;
and some are related to communication skills and training, with a view to
enhancing police officers’ capability to respond to different situations in
performing their duties.

The following are examples of SQlls made by the IPCC to the police during
the reporting period:

(1) Remind drivers to provide the police with car camcorder footage for
traffic contraventions or accidents

(2) Improve the efficiency of handling digital forensics evidence

(3) Review procedures for collection and return of video-recorded
interview discs

(4) Ensure proper handling and return of exhibits by the police

(5) Remind frontline police officers to keep proper records in their
notebooks

REMEES
Make
recommendations

RAZKRBER
Enhance police’s
service quality

HEREZE
Identify any deficiency
in police practices
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Remind drivers to provide the police with car camcorder footage for traffic contraventions or

accidents
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In the past five years, traffic enforcement-related complaints accounted
for nearly 20% of the total number of complaints each year. During the
above period, the IPCC put forward a total of 14 SQlls regarding traffic
enforcement to enhance the service quality of the police. These
recommendations cover various areas, including: strengthening frontline
officers” ability to identify vehicles with defects or illegal alterations;
optimising the procedures for handling Traffic Accident Victims Assistance
Scheme application forms; and amending the police’s internal guidelines
on requiring officers to record settlements of the drivers involved in minor
traffic accidents.

With the increasing popularity of car camcorders, many vehicles have
installed video-recording devices to record the surrounding situations and
images of vehicles while driving. If a driver is involved in an accident or
suspected of contravening traffic regulations, the video footage taken
while driving is often important and strong evidence to clarify the course
of the incident and who is responsible, and assist the police in follow-up
investigations.

In a complaint case, a police officer driving a police vehicle passing
through Tsim Sha Tsui was suddenly cut off by a taxi and had to brake
abruptly. The police officer immediately intercepted the taxi, and told the
driver (the complainant, COM) that he was suspected of careless driving
and would be summonsed. Subsequently, COM received a summons for
“Careless Driving”. Pleading not guilty, COM submitted to the court video
footage captured by his taxi’s camcorder, showing that his driving
behaviour did not constitute “Careless Driving”. He was eventually
acquitted. COM then complained that the investigating officers
prosecuted him without conducting enquiry with him [Allegation: Neglect
of Duty].
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Upon investigation, CAPO originally classified the allegation as “No Fault”
on the grounds that COM did not take the initiative to tell the police that
he could provide video footage taken by his car camcorder to assist in the
investigation of the case. Moreover, the police officer who intercepted
COM’s taxi did not record whether the taxi was equipped with a car
camcorder. Therefore, CAPO considered that the investigating officers had
no way of knowing that COM had car camcorder footage to provide, and it
was reasonable that they did not enquire with COM in this regard.

In the present case, it would have been better if — before prosecuting
COM — the investigating officers had enquired whether he had any
response to the allegation of careless driving, or whether he could provide
evidence to assist the police in investigating the case. However, whether
to enquire with COM depended on the investigating officers’ judgement,
including whether sufficient evidence is available to prosecute COM or
whether further clarification is required from COM. The investigating
officers evaluated the observations, statement and record of the police
officer who intercepted COM’s taxi at the scene and concluded that there
was sufficient evidence to lay a charge on COM. Therefore, it was not
unacceptable that the police officer did not enquire with COM, and it was
difficult to determine whether his conduct was inappropriate. As a result,
CAPO reclassified the finding of the investigation as “Unsubstantiated”.

While vetting the complaint case, the IPCC found that the police did not
specify that police officers were required to enquire with a driver accused
of an offence before deciding to prosecute him or her, or to confirm
whether the driver had any video taken by a car camcorder that could be
used as evidence by the police to assist in the case investigation. To this
end, the IPCC has proposed that the police should enhance the
procedures for handling traffic offence prosecutions. Before prosecuting
drivers suspected of offences, the police should ensure that the drivers
have the opportunity to explain their actions, and in particular to remind
drivers that if they have any car camcorder footage, they should provide it
to the police as soon as possible to support their explanations.

The police agreed with IPCC’s recommendation, and will remind drivers
involved in traffic incidents to provide any information for police
investigations regarding the “Notice of Intended Prosecution” issued to
them. CAPO will, through their outreach programme and training, remind
frontline officers to pay attention to whether car camcorders are installed
in vehicles when handling traffic cases, so as to obtain any relevant
videos to assist in investigations. If the driver concerned agrees to provide
the police with the car camcorder footage as evidence, frontline officers
should make a proper record of it.
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Improve the efficiency of handling digital forensics evidence
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With the development of information technology, technology application
and digital commerce have long become an integral part of people’s lives.
However, criminals are taking advantage of security loopholes in
cyberspace to commit crimes using digital technology. According to
figures published by the police, the number of cybercrimes received by
the police in 2022 reached 22,797, nearly doubling from 12,916 cases in
2020. Commercial fraud, online shopping fraud and online account theft
are among the most common types of cybercrimes, and the victims often
suffer a great deal both emotionally and financially.

The police’s Cyber Security and Technology Crime Bureau (CSTCB) is
responsible for handling cyber security-related matters and investigating
cybercrimes, including the seizure of digital evidence from computers and
mobile phones in crime cases and conducting digital forensics
examinations for future court proceedings. Given the surge in cybercrimes,
the rapid development of digital technology, and the increasing
sophistication of technology applied to crime, the workload of CSTCB has
also increased accordingly.

In a complaint case, the complainant (COM) was arrested on suspicion of
the offence of “Access to Computer with Criminal or Dishonest Intent” for
stealing computer software codes developed by his former employer. Two
of his computers were seized by the police, and handed over to CSTCB for
examination to see whether they contained evidence that COM had stolen
the alleged computer software codes. The police eventually ceased the
investigation due to insufficient evidence, as the former employer decided
not to pursue the case. COM felt aggrieved by the lengthy police
investigation, which resulted in the prolonged custody of his computers
[Allegation: Neglect of Duty]. CAPO investigation revealed that there was
indeed a delay in filing an application by the police officer for digital
forensics evidence to CSTCB. Therefore, CAPO classified the allegation as
“Substantiated” and the police officer concerned was given an advice
without Divisional Record File entry.
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In reviewing the case, the IPCC noticed that, apart from the delay in the
filing of an application by the frontline police officer, CSTCB had taken
about 36 months to complete the digital forensics work for the case. In
this regard, CAPO explained that CSTCB has seen a significant upsurge in
caseload in recent years. CSTCB prioritised the forensics examination
according to the seriousness of the case. As such, some cases might have
experienced a longer waiting time. In view of the situation, the IPCC
recommended that the police formulate effective measures to enhance
the efficiency of CSTCB in handling digital forensics evidence.

CSTCB has devised a number of projects so as to enhance the efficiency of
digital forensics examination. The measures implemented so far included:

(1) Increasing the manpower of CSTCB to alleviate the increasingly
heavy workload;

(2) Upgrading the existing computer system at CSTCB for the application
of digital forensics evidence to ensure that frontline police officers
provide detailed information when applying for digital forensics
evidence, thereby reducing the number and time required by CSTCB
to clarify matters or request relevant information from the officers
applying for digital forensics evidence;

(3) Implementing “Project CAPTURE”, which involves installing
visualisation support systems in video interview rooms of all police
stations. This enables frontline police officers to use these systems
to capture content on the screens of electronic devices that are
related to crime cases, thus recording videos that can be used for
direct presentation of evidence in future court proceedings. This can
obviate the need to submit the electronic devices to CSTCB in order
to extract their contents, in turn expediting the processing of cases
involving electronic devices and reducing the workload of CSTCB;
and

(4) Strengthening training to enhance the ability of frontline police
officers to conduct simple forensics evidence examination and
handle digital evidence, so that they can perform preliminary
examination on digital evidence under appropriate circumstances.

In addition, the police’s Digital Forensics Complex was officially launched
in July 2023. The new facility replaces the Computer Forensics Laboratory,
which has been in use for nearly 20 years, and further assists the police in
handling case investigation, collaboration, examination, data analysis,
data review and evidence management. This helps enhance collaboration
effectiveness and efficiency of the police’s investigation. The IPCC
welcomes the implementation of the above-mentioned improvement
measures by the police and will continue to monitor their effectiveness.
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3. IR M AR ERE TRE T KIRNERF

Review procedures for collection and return of video-recorded interview discs
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In the course of a crime investigation, a police officer may take a
cautioned statement from a person under investigation by way of a
written statement or a video-recorded interview (VRI). When the police
conduct a VRI, the video footage will be stored and burnt onto a disc for
possible future submission to court, regardless of whether the person
under investigation has confessed or not. Each VRI must use a new set of
discs marked with a unique serial number. These discs can only be used
once, and cannot be reused, modified or deleted. Compared with written
statement, VRI not only saves time but, more importantly, enables the
whole interview to be conducted with a high degree of transparency, and
better presents the response and behaviour of the interviewee during the
interview. In subsequent court proceedings, this can help reduce any
controversy over voluntariness or proper arrangements of the interviews.

To forestall any challenge against the content of a VRI or the statement-
taking process during court proceedings, the police must ensure that
every step of the procedure is properly managed to preserve the integrity
of the chain of evidence. Police officers conducting investigations are
required to properly record the details of collection, use and return of the
VRI discs. However, in vetting complaint cases, the IPCC found that police
officers occasionally did not strictly follow the procedures when collecting
and returning the VRI discs, and observed that there was room for
improvement in the procedures.

In a complaint case, the complainant (COM) was arrested for “Theft” and
his cautioned statement was taken by the police in a VRI. COM claimed
that the police had conducted two VRIs with him. COM alleged that the
two interviewing officers (one police constable and one sergeant) induced
him to admit the offence during the second VRI [Allegation: Misconduct].
Denying the allegation, the two interviewing officers argued that they had
conducted only one VRI with COM.
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As there was no evidence indicating whether the police conducted one or
two VRIs with COM and whether the interviewing officers had induced
COM to admit the offence, it was not possible to conclude either party’s
version, and CAPO classified the allegation as “Unsubstantiated”.
Nevertheless, CAPO noted during the investigation that the two
interviewing officers had lost one set of VRI disc, but they had not
complied with the Police General Orders by reporting the loss of the discs
to their Divisional Commander. Therefore, CAPO registered an additional
count of “Substantiated Other Than Reported” against the two officers,
and issued warnings against them without Divisional Record File entry.

During the scrutiny of this complaint, it came to the attention of the IPCC
that, according to the Force Procedures Manual (FPM), police stations are
required to maintain a register of the collection and return of VRI discs, in
order to record the serial number of each disc collected by police officers,
the time of retrieval and return of the discs, and the reasons for any non-
return of discs. At the request of the IPCC, CAPO enquired with various
police stations and found that the formats of their registers varied. Also,
the FPM does not specifically state that supervisors should check the
completeness of the information in the registers.

To ensure that police officers accurately record the collection and return of
relevant discs and return all unused discs in a timely manner, the IPCC
considers it necessary for the police to comprehensively review and refine
the relevant procedural guidelines, standardise the practices of every
police station, and formulate a monitoring mechanism.

CAPO agreed with the IPCC’s recommendations and had amended the
guidelines and procedures, requiring all police units to supervise the
distribution and return of VRI discs, and CAPO had reminded frontline
police officers to make proper records when collecting and returning VRI
discs through its publications regarding complaints prevention. The IPCC
is of the view that these measures will effectively improve and monitor the
procedures for the distribution and return of VRI discs.
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Ensure proper handling and return of exhibits by the police

EHEEEREETRINGEY - EF%
FRIFRPEYTBHRA TR TUESS
REBEY T AM ERENBRE
FoBEETRSEGFNRELRE > UBK
SERNRYBRE ALEEZEEEREHA
BHZ > ERARFERENZYRE
K LHREREXR -H202IFES &
FNRRAELRASZERERFED
EBYMITENRFER > BRUESETF
ﬁfﬁ’x}ﬂ%@%ﬁﬁﬁibﬂ cUITR=ZMEE
b

B%— : B M E K E R 54 ok 8E B B
RigEY

E—FIRFFERED > RFAR THFRIR)
MWE T - WHE > EFASERNT
BIFANFIREZFEY - H1B > EER
ERFAFEZRIL - RFAZEBEAESE
AREFREETH - EHHEMEHFRAHF
RERBRFIREFZERM - 28T > &F
AFER=ER®% > HARWEIZFIREE[15
TERBET] RAFERFREAERE
B rFAFERE EFEHRTHE —RHE
Z THIERIR ) RARMBRIE - HINRFA
WFREFEENIEANEEZRRILA
MBHETRHERIE  RESEBRERNR
ANFREFFE—THE > MWNEABER
PHRAERBARBEZRERFA o &
FRERRFICIEEDES (WEIBHE - 5
FMEAEMS > EEGRRBEELEHAETE
RARERFRFEZREYE > BELRE
BRENYERENKREZSYNRRA -
W% 5 EA BRI ©

xR EESEREERRIEBSEYE
AR RBIEEY

EEZRED > REFABIE T5F8R 5 o REFA
EEREESFGERERBRBRBYVBE(E
ERBET)  RIFERRAER » R
EYENEENTER 21ER A EERF

Independent Police Complaints Council | Report 2022/23

" \vwEncs
' =

The police often seize properties as exhibits when investigating cases.
After a case is closed, the police will return the case exhibits to the
property owners unless there is an order for them to be destroyed or
confiscated. Occasionally, due to the subsequent development of the
cases, it is not possible to return the exhibits to the property owners. In
some cases, however, exhibits were wrongly destroyed because of the
negligence of some police officers, resulting in losses to citizens. From
2021 till now, there have been about 20 complaint cases per year arising
from the police’s failure to properly handle and return case exhibits, which
is higher than the annual average of approximately 12 complaint cases in
previous years. Here are three examples:

Case 1: Failure to return exhibits immediately because the case had
not yet been concluded

In a complaint case, the complainant (COM) was arrested by the police for
“Criminal Damage”. After arrest, the police seized COM’s mobile phone as
an exhibit. Later, COM was convicted of the offence. COM then enquired
with the police about the return of his mobile phone. The police informed
COM that the phone would be returned to him upon conclusion of the
case. Nevertheless, COM did not receive his phone although three months
had passed after his conviction [Allegation: Neglect of Duty]. CAPO’s
investigation revealed that after COM was convicted, the police arrested
another suspect in connection with the “Criminal Damage” case. As COM’s
mobile phone might contain some information that may help prove that
the suspect was involved in the “Criminal Damage” case, the police
continued to retain COM’s mobile phone for further investigation and
returned the phone to COM only after the conclusion of the suspect’s
case. CAPO thus classified the allegation as “No Fault”. In this case, the
IPCC held that although the police had a legitimate reason for failing to
return the mobile phone to the owner immediately, the police should
inform the owner as soon as possible of the reason for the failure to
promptly return the exhibit so as not to cause unnecessary complaints.

Case 2: Unable to return the exhibits as soon as possible due to
delay in processing by the police and failure to contact the owner

In this complaint, the complainant (COM), who was charged with
“Deception”, alleged that the police failed to return the exhibits right after
the conclusion of the case [Allegation: Neglect of Duty]. After investigation,
CAPO confirmed that the exhibits were returned to COM only 21 months
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after the conclusion of the court case. As stipulated in the police internal
guidelines, a crime team is required to promptly process the disposal of
exhibits six weeks after a court order is issued. CAPO revealed that the
crime team in this complaint had negligent in instructing the Property
Office to dispose of the exhibits only four months after the deadline. And
upon receipt of the instruction, the staff member of Property Office spent
more than a year trying to contact COM, but to no avail. The staff member
claimed that two notification letters were sent to COM, and he tried to
contact COM by phone but could not find him. Nevertheless, the staff
member did not record when COM was called. According to the police
internal guidelines, if the owner is not successfully contacted within three
months, the staff of Property Office is required to report to the officer in
charge of the case (OC Case) for further follow-up. Yet, the staff member in
the said Property Office failed to follow the guidelines and reported to the
OC Case after the three-month deadline, delaying the property returning
process. In the end, the staff member of Property Office did not report the
situation to the OC Case until one year later, and the OC Case arranged for
his own officers to successfully contact COM and returned the exhibits to
him two months later. After examining the case, CAPO concluded that the
OC Case as well as the investigating officers of the crime team and the
staff member of Property Office had been negligent in their duties.
Therefore, the allegation against them was classified as “Substantiated”,
and they were given warnings without Divisional Record File entry. The
IPCC noticed that at present there are no guidelines for the staff of
Property Office to record the time and date of all contacts with the
property owners in their files, rendering it impossible to trace when and
how the Property Office had tried to contact the owners. The IPCC found
this undesirable and asked CAPO to review the procedures for the return
of exhibits by the police. Even if the owner could not be reached
successfully, the staff of Property Office should properly record the details
in the file for appropriate follow-up.

Case 3: Negligent destruction of exhibits to be returned

The police arrested the complainant (COM) for “Theft”, and seized the
clothing he was wearing at the time of the offence as evidence. After the
trial, the court ordered the police to return the clothing to COM. However,
COM alleged that the police failed to return the clothing [Allegation:
Neglect of Duty]. CAPO’s investigation found that the OC Case had
wrongfully instructed the staff of Property Office to destroy COM’s
clothing. CAPO thus classified the allegation as “Substantiated” and gave
the OC Case a warning without Divisional Record File entry.

In summary, the IPCC, based on the above three cases, opined that if the
police fail to return the exhibits to the owner immediately for legitimate
reasons, the relevant officer should notify the owner with explanation as
soon as possible to avoid misunderstanding or unnecessary complaints.
In addition, the police should improve the guidelines for the return of
exhibits by requiring the staff of Property Office to record the date and
time of all contacts with the owner. The police accepted the IPCC’s
recommendation, and agreed to review and enhance the relevant
procedures. Moreover, the police will remind their officers of the
guidelines from time to time to ensure that frontline officers handle and
return exhibits in a proper manner.
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Remind frontline police officers to keep proper records in their

notebooks
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According to Police General Orders,

police officers on duty are required to

carry their notebooks with them to 7 X
record matters relating to their duties,

especially the details of and reasons for

exercising their powers.

However, in reviewing the complaints, the IPCC noticed that some
frontline police officers did not properly record in their notebooks the
details of their daily duties and the reasons they exercised their police
powers, such as the scope of a body search when carrying out a stop-and-
search, the process of handling a traffic accident, and the procedures for
seizing an exhibit. In 2021/22 and 2022/23, there were 26 and 29
allegations, respectively, involving improper recording in notebooks that
were classified as “Substantiated Other Than Reported” (SOTR).

Taking stop-and-searches as an example. The Laws of Hong Kong
empower police officers to intercept and search a citizen under certain
circumstances, such as suspecting that an individual is in possession of
weapons or drugs, in order to detect and prevent crime. Members of the
public may feel embarrassed or detrimental to their dignity when they are
searched by police officers in public places. This may sometimes lead to
complaints. The Police General Orders stipulate that when conducting
stop-and-searches, police officers are required to jot down details of the
searches in their notebooks. When reviewing complaints arising from
stop-and-searches, the [PCC also examines police notebooks to
understand what happened. A proper notebook record helps with
understanding the course of an incident, and may serve as proof that the
police officers” act is reasonable and proper. However, if a police officer
has not made due records in the notebook as instructed, and the missing
record is closely related to the allegation, a count of SOTR will be
registered.

When dealing with minor traffic accidents, police officers are required to
invite the drivers involved who have agreed to settle the case to sign in
the notebook to confirm their willingness to settle. In addition, during
house search, police officer is required to record in the notebook the
authority under which he/she is exercising and the details of the seized
property, as well as the acknowledgement of the seized property in the
notebook. Nevertheless, both CAPO and the IPCC occasionally found that
police officers had failed to comply with the signing requirement in the
above circumstances, and registered counts of SOTR as a result of their
negligence.

Frontline police officers are required to record the reasons for and details
of the exercise of their police powers in the course of their daily duties.
This is particularly important for police officers to be prepared to give
evidence in court in the future. In view of the above, the IPCC recommends
that the police should put more efforts into reminding frontline officers to
diligently record the details of and rationales for their enforcement actions
in the notebooks, in compliance with the relevant instructions. This can
help clarify the circumstances of incidents, and assist police officers with
recalling the incidents. It can even help the parties involved to retain
evidence that is beneficial to both police officers and citizens.
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To remind driver(s) involved in traffic accidents to provide
the police with dash camera footage to assist case
investigations.

To increase the number of call lines in the report room
recording system to cater to the public demand for police
services.

To review guidelines and formulate improvement measures
to ensure that the police can return case exhibits to
property owners as soon as practicable.

To promptly notify property owners if case exhibits cannot
be immediately returned to them due to special
circumstances.

To formulate improvement measures to remind armoury
officers to keep proper records in the beat equipment
register. Frontline officers should also be reminded to
properly document their use of force in their police
notebooks.

To enhance the efficiency of processing digital forensics
evidence in the Cyber Security and Technology Crime
Bureau.

To review procedures for collection and return of video-
recorded interview discs.

To further assess the legality and appropriateness of
conducting body searches in locations other than police
stations (such as in police vehicles).

To enhance CAPO’s guidelines regarding contacting
complainants to secure assistance from them effectively.

To devise effective measures for early identification of
complainees by CAPO.
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S5=% Chapter3 | BRFSEZRINZEE Service Quality Improvement Initiatives

To review the handling procedures and guidelines regarding
persons brought into police stations to ensure that frontline
officers properly record the whole process, handle such
persons in compliance with police guidelines, and uphold
the police’s duty of care to such persons.

To enhance the communication skills of report room officers
in their handling of public enquiries.

To remind report room officers regarding the need for timely
receiving members of the public visiting the report room.

To remind frontline officers to make proper police notebook
records when handling anti-epidemic-related reports.

To remind frontline officers about the requirements for
taking statements with foreign nationals or non-local
Chinese in their preferred dialects as stipulated in current
guidelines.

To remind frontline officers to record the necessity and
scope of searches in their notebooks in compliance with
police guidelines.

To remind officers to prevent reoccurrence of
misunderstanding which led to the overwriting of Body
Worn Video Camera footage.

To require supervisory officers to strengthen inspection of
the “Register for Cancellation of Warrants” to ensure that
the police promptly and correctly remove persons who are
no longer wanted for court warrants from the wanted list.

CAPO is reminded to be mindful and adopt Informal
Resolution only for cases of a minor nature.
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Stakeholder Engagement
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School Programme
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In accordance with the IPCC Ordinance, one of the Council’s statutory
functions is “to promote public awareness of the role of the Council”. In
recent years, the IPCC’s publicity work has focused on ways the Council’s
Service Quality Improvement Initiatives help to enhance the service
quality of the police force and reduce unnecessary complaints. IPCC has
also stepped up its efforts to explain to the community the rights and
responsibility of complainants.

To this end, the Council continues to establish good rapport with
stakeholders through diverse activities and various channels. During the
reporting period, IPCC held and participated in more than 30 outreach
activities, engaging over 10,000 members of the public, teachers and
students, as well as representatives of the police, media and professional
groups.

Meanwhile, IPCC is committed to strengthening its external
communication efforts. Through corporate publications, the [PCC's
website and YouTube channel, newspaper feature articles and other
platforms, the Council disseminates up-to-date information to the
community, enabling the public to have a better understanding of the
work of IPCC.

Launched in November 2016, the IPCC’'s School Programme aims to
introduce the statutory functions of IPCC to teachers and students of local
tertiary institutions, secondary and primary schools.

In collaboration with participating schools, talks in both on-site and online
formats were offered to deepen the younger generation’s understanding
of the work of the Council and the two-tier police complaints system in
Hong Kong. Through videos and interactive games, IPCC representatives
demonstrated how the Council meticulously examines each complaint to
ensure a fair and impartial result. Real cases were also covered to
cultivate students’ thinking from multiple perspectives and raise their civic
awareness. This also helped the students to better comprehend
complainants’ rights and responsibility.

During the reporting period, IPCC gave a total of 20 talks, explaining the
IPCC’s work to more than 7,500 teachers and students.
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Engaging with the police
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2022%5H11H
11 May 2022

IPCC is empowered to observe, monitor and review the handling and
investigation of Reportable Complaints by the police, to identify any
deficiency in police practices or procedures that might lead to complaints,
and to propose Service Quality Improvement Initiatives to the police in a
timely manner.

The Council maintains close communications with various police
departments. In addition to organising exchange activities with the force,
the Council visited various police units to understand the challenges
faced by frontline police officers, and to closely follow up the progress of
police’s implementation of improvement initiatives.

The engagement activities between IPCC and the police during the year
were as follows:

A
5 16 75 5% B ot ) 2021 SQ

FEEFEREFEHAZEEETFERKBEERKRREZEEETLEHR
BEHDBF  BIEREBRRBERDEMN 12021 FRERBRER
5tE) NFEERE > UK HPIERXMEEETE - A8 5 ER
BEBASRUESR  FERATERTRAN > UNBEBRNE
FKRTPRRFBER °

Mr Alex Chu Wing-yiu (then Chairman of the Operations Advisory
Committee) and retired Member Prof Martin Wong Chi-sang were
invited by the police force to join the Judging Panel for the Service
Quality Award Scheme 2021, and took part in adjudicating projects
submitted by several formations. The awards scheme is organised by
the Service Quality Wing of the force, and aims to encourage police
officers to submit suggestions for enhancing their performance and
effectiveness, in order to improve the professionalism and service
quality of the force.
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An IPCC delegation comprising Council Members
and Secretariat staff members, led by Ms Priscilla
Wong Pui-sze (Council Chairman), visited the
Police Tactical Unit (PTU) Headquarters. The visit
was to follow up the police’s implementation
progress of recommendations made by the IPCC
in its Thematic Study Report published in 2020.
The police briefed the delegation of follow up
actions PTU had taken in five major areas: (1) Riot
training for frontline officers; (2) Command and
coordination in tackling riots; (3) Dissemination
of information to public in riots, (4) Effects of tear
gas; and (5) Police guidelines on handling riots.
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29 November 2022
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Ms Priscilla Wong Pui-sze (Council Chairman),
IPCC Members and Secretariat staff members
visited the Traffic Kowloon West Operational
Base. During the visit, the delegation learned
how the police have been adopting technology
to support traffic enforcement and help reduce
related complaints. Members also met with
frontline traffic police officers to understand the
challenges they face while performing their daily
duties.
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Ms Priscilla Wong Pui-sze (Council Chairman)
inspected the passing-out parade as Reviewing
Officer at the Hong Kong Police College. She
encouraged the 26 probationary inspectors and
89 recruit police constables to contribute to
Hong Kong’s progress from stability to prosperity
with resolve, courage, tact and tenacity.
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Ms Priscilla Wong Pui-sze (Council Chairman), together
with  Council Members and representatives of [PCC
Secretariat, attended a networking luncheon with the
police management and CAPO representatives to
exchange views on recent complaint trends. After the
luncheon, Members and Secretariat staff took part in the
Sports Day hosted by the Police Service Quality Wing, and
tried their very best in a series of contests.
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Liaison with other organisations
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IPCC received a delegation of Mainland legal
officials, who had participated in the Common
Law Training Scheme organised by the
Department of Justice. Mr Paul Lam Ting-kwok
(then Chairman of the Legal Committee), Hon
Jimmy Ng Wing-ka (IPCC Vice-Chairman and
Member of the Legal Committee), and Mr Daniel
Mui (Secretary-General) introduced the two-tier
police complaints system in Hong Kong, the
statutory functions and role of IPCC, and the
Council’s efforts in proposing Service Quality
Improvement Initiatives to the police. The
delegates exchanged views with IPCC on the
complaints handling system, and shared their
experiences in legal practice and law
enforcement.

4 3
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26 August, 31 August and 26
September 2022

R EER B/ ESOEEFEERRE S L LHE
MERBERILELHFER K EERFEITEZE
TEE NREEECENBBNEAERSE - 18E
BAAEETARHEFEILEMVHEEMFETER
EHNEH BHEFEZENKHED - KFAH
EANREEFZEXAER - HEZEHES
AERFRFRIEATREFRFHBTME X
TEEE o

Ms Ann Au Chor-kwan (then Chairman of Case
Vetting Sub-group 4), accompanied by Mr Daniel
Mui (Secretary-General), attended a meeting with
the Sham Shui Po District Fight Crime Committee
(DFCO) and introduced the role and statutory
functions of IPCC. Mr Daniel Mui also attended
Fight Crime Committee meetings of North District
and Shatin District, to exchange views with the
attending members on the trends in complaints,
as well as complainants’ rights and responsibility.
The DFCC members expressed their appreciation
of the Council’s unwavering efforts in upholding a
fairand impartial complaints system.
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IPCC was invited by the District Fight Crime
Committee to set up an interactive game booth
and educational exhibition at the Sha Tin District
Fight Crime Carnival. The TV drama series, /PCC
Frontline, was also shown. Through a range of
fun-filled activities, members of the public gained
a better understanding of the IPCC’s work. The
event received overwhelming response and
attracted over 1,000 participants.
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During the reporting period, IPCC held four joint meetings with CAPO — on
21 June, 20 September and 29 December 2022, and 21 March 2023.
During the meetings, CAPO reported the latest complaint figures and
discussed matters of public concern. Topics discussed included IPCC's
recommendations on the use of force, protection and support of
vulnerable witnesses, complaints prevention strategies of the force, and
digital policing.
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SRR
Engaging with the media

BEEEE2022/23FERTEIMBER  In2022/23, IPCC held four news conferences to update the press and the
g BEBRARDPEGHFNEHNIIE >  publicon the Council’s latest work and address media enquiries.
It [B] FE (B IR 4R RS o
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20225%6H21H
21 June 2022
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Ms Priscilla Wong Pui-sze (Council Chairman)
accompanied by Mr Clement Chan Kam-wing
(Chairman of the Publicity and Community Relations Committee) and Mr Daniel Mui (Secretary-General) hosted a
media briefing to update the follow-up work on implementation of the 52 recommendations proposed by IPCC in
its Thematic Study Report of 2020, and to launch the 29th issue of IPCC Newsletter.

202259H20H
20 September 2022
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Ms Priscilla Wong Pui-sze (Council Chairman),
together with Mr Clement Chan Kam-wing
(Chairman of the Publicity and Community Relations Committee) and Mr Daniel Mui (Secretary-General), hosted a
media briefing. Mr Clement Chan briefed the media regarding the cover story of the 30th issue of /PCC Newsletter,
while Mr Daniel Mui reported on the latest complaints statistics arising from public order events.
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Ms Priscilla Wong Pui-sze (Council Chairman),
accompanied by Mr Clement Chan Kam-wing
(Chairman of the Publicity and Community Relations
Committee) and Mr Daniel Mui (Secretary-General), hosted a media briefing to publish the Report 2021/22. Key
complaints figures and achievements in the reporting period were presented.

20234%3H21H
21 March 2023
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Ms Priscilla Wong Pui-sze (Council Chairman),

accompanied by Mr Clement Chan Kam-wing (Chairman of the Publicity and Community Relations Committee) and Mr
Daniel Mui (Secretary-General), hosted a media briefing to launch the 31st issue of /PCC Newsletter. Several complaint
cases arising from handling of disputes and routine law enforcement, along with relevant statistics and improvement
initiatives IPCC proposed to the police, were presented.
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Newspaper feature articles
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Feature articles were published in local newspaper,
allowing a wider public to learn more about the
latest work and developments of IPCC.
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EEY
The Council

EEERRBEGEEERG) AILABIE  The IPCCis an independent statutory body established under the IPCCO.
EIE > TFE =ZUBIEFEMEELEH  The Chairman, three Vice-Chairmen and Members are all appointed by the

THREZE -REMAZEZENT Chief Executive. The membership of the IPCC during the reporting period
is as follows:

FFE Chairman {EH#A Appointment

Fomsr+ > SBS 0 JP 20215651012

Ms Priscilla WONG Pui-sze, SBS, JP Since 1 June 2021

El X FE Vice-Chairmen {EH#A Appointment

Z5RZEE » GBS 0 P BERHERESEIRE 2019181 BiE

Hon Frankie YICK Chi-ming, GBS, JP EREI AT Since 1 January 2019

Serious Complaints Committee Chairman
Case Vetting Sub-group Chairman

PRIREES » JP {BZRE L/ VEEE 202141818
Hon Ronick CHAN Chun-ying, JP Case Vetting Sub-group Chairman Since 1 January 2021
RxE=E > BBS P (B2 VAL R 2021618181
Hon Jimmy NG Wing-ka, BBS, JP Case Vetting Sub-group Chairman Since 1 January 2021
% & Members {THA Appointment
FREREE A » BBS o MH » JP EERHEMGEEETE 2016568 181E
Mr Clement CHAN Kam-wing, BBS, MH, JP Publicity and Community Relations Since 1 June 2016
Committee Chairman
RKIBIFRE BERIEFHEAEERTE (FHE20226128) 201741818%202246128318
Mr Alex CHU Wing-yiu Operations Advisory Committee Chairman From 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2022
(Until December 2022)
PRIEARIEL > BBS » MH BERRFHEHESTER 2021618181
Dr Daniel CHAN Ching-yan, BBS, MH (FHAEI2023E 181 Since 1 January 2021

Operations Advisory Committee Chairman
(Since January 2023)

FRGBRE BEEERTE (EPE2022668) 2018568 10
Mr Roland WONG Ka-yeung Management Committee Chairman Since 1 June 2018
(Until June 2022)
xR AcE BESFERIE ((EHM202266510) 2016565 181E
Mr Wilson KWONG Wing-tsuen Management Committee Chairman Since 1June 2016
(Since June 2022)
ME BB AT > SBS 5 JP* HREBEEGTRE (EHHE2022568) 20194E98 4B FE 2022468208
Mr Paul LAM Ting-kwok, SBS, SC, JP* Legal Committee Chairman (Until June 2022)  From 4 September 2019 to 20 June 2022

* ERRARBNESATERITHERFRBAER > 2022878 1BEM -
*  Appointed by the Central People’s Government as the Secretary for Justice of the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
with effect from 1 July 2022.
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Z &8 Members {EHA Appointment

ZEBEZ L BBS> MH - JP
Ms Melissa Kaye PANG, BBS, MH, JP

BRIZ R ST
Mr CHAN Chak-ming

Bt o P
Ms Ann AU Chor-kwan, JP

EEEE R AR
Mr Douglas LAM Tak-yip, SC

FREEY LT
Miss Sylvia LEE Hiu-wah

ER(CEH > BBS > MH » JP
Dr David LEE Ka-yan, BBS, MH, JP

mELHIE
Prof Martin WONG Chi-sang

WBEBLE P
Mr Johnny YU Wah-yung, JP

PREREYETE L > SBS» MH > JP

Dr Anissa CHAN WONG Lai-kuen, SBS, MH, JP

RS E 0 MH 0 P
Mr LEE Man-bun, MH, JP

BALEx L BBS )P

Ms Jane Curzon LO, BBS, JP
RRE¥LZ L SBS

Mrs Helen YU LAI Ching-ping, SBS

REZEZ L 5 P
Miss Mabel CHAN Mei-bo, JP

REMAEE 0 MH > JP
Mr Randy YU Hon-kwan, MH, JP

FFRARRZ £+

Ms Cindi HUI Ming-ming

ML B

Prof LIN Feng

oo EE 4

Dr Desmond NGUYEN Gia-hung
MR m A4 » BBS 2 JP

Mr lvan SZE Wing-hang, BBS, JP

FREREERTE
(EHBEH202268BE128)
Legal Committee Chairman
(From August to December 2022)

FEEBZEETRE ((THIR2023F187E)
Legal Committee Chairman
(Since January 2023)

BB IAERE (FE2022F128)
Case Vetting Sub-group Chairman
(Until December 2022)
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201718 1HZE2022F12831H
From 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2022

2023%F181H#E
Since 1 January 2023

2017F1A18%E2022F12A31H
From 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2022

2017F1818%E2022465831H
From 1 January 2017 to 31 May 2022

2017F1B1HE2022%F12831H
From 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2022

2017F1818%E2022412831H
From 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2022

2017%18B1HZE2022F12831H
From 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2022

2017F1B18E2022%F12831H
From 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2022

2018F6H 1 HIE
Since 1 June 2018

201915 1HiE
Since 1 January 2019

20191/ 18I
Since 1 January 2019

2019 9R 4B
Since 4 September 2019

2021F 1818
Since 1 January 2021

20211818
Since 1 January 2021

2023%F181H#E
Since 1 January 2023

2023F151HiE
Since 1 January 2023

2023F1A1HE
Since 1 January 2023

2023%181H#E
Since 1 January 2023
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IPCC Members’ Attendance at In-house Meetings Period: April 2022 to March 2023

REERTHETATEE > HEBZEZE5  The IPCC holds in-house meetings every quarter for the full Council to
REEENRNMIF - WAFTE > "EE  discuss internal matters. Special in-house meeting would be held when
MR G o necessary.

@ 7 Attended O %% Did notattend  N/A RE& A2 Not a Member of the Meeting

2023
e
3878 Total
7 Mar
X Chairman
N\s priscilla WONG Pui- sze, SBS, P ® ° [ ° 44
Bl EJE Vice-Chairmen
Z5BR=ZES » GBS » P
Hon Frankie YICK Chi-ming, GBS, JP ¢ i ® ® 4/4
PRIRS2:ES » JP
Hon Ronick CHAN Chun-ying, JP ® ® O O 2/4
BokE=®HE > BBS P
Hon Jimmy NG Wing-ka, BBS, JP ® ® o o 2/4
Z£8 Members
BEEREE 54 > BBS > MH » JP
Mr Clement CHAN Kam-wing, BBS, MH, JP ® ® ® O 3/4
KRB E"
Mr Alex CHU Wing-yiu" ® ® ® N/A 3/3
BEIEfREL > BBS » MH
Dr Daniel CHAN Ching-yan, BBS, MH ® o o o 4/4
FRGEE
Mr Roland WONG Ka-yeung ® ® ° O 3/4
BRI E
Mr Wilson KWONG Wing-tsuen o ° ° ° 4/4
MEBIE R AZEED > SBS » JP*
Mr Paul LAM Ting-kwok, SBS, SC, JP* O N/A N/A N/A 0/1
S EEfEX > BBS» MH » P
Ms Melissa Kaye PANG, BBS, MH, JP" O ® o N/A 2/3
PRIESE A
Mr CHAN Chak-ming* N/A N/A N/A ® 1/1

* ERRARBFEISASTERITHRRENEZERAER  12022F7B1HEM
* Appointed by the Central People’s Government as the Secretary for Justice of the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
with effect from 1 July 2022.
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Bt o P
Ms Ann AU Chor-kwan, JP"

FhEEw+"
Miss Sylvia LEE Hiu-wah"

FR({CEL > BBS > MH » JP”
Dr David LEE Ka-yan, BBS, MH, JP*

BEFHK
Prof Martin WONG Chi-sang”

SERLE 5P
Mr Johnny YU Wah-yung, JP"

R REYStE 1 > SBS» MH » JP
Dr Anissa CHAN WONG Lai-kuen, SBS, MH, JP

EORATE 0 MH 5 P
Mr LEE Man-bun, MH, JP

#FLBEZ LT »BBS P
Ms Jane Curzon LO, BBS, JP

RREFLZ T > SBS
Mrs Helen YU LAI Ching-ping, SBS

MREZw I 5 P
Miss Mabel CHAN Mei-bo, JP

REMHAEE > MH > JP
Mr Randy YU Hon-kwan, MH, JP

FFRAPAZ
Ms Cindi HUI Ming-ming*

N EZ e
Prof LIN Feng*

o BBd 4 ¥
Dr Desmond NGUYEN Gia-hung*

MR A4 > BBS » JP*
Mr Ivan SZE Wing-hang, BBS, JP*

FEAE 202212831 H
Until 31 December 2022

* R2023F 1B 1 BEZRE
#  Appointed on 1 January 2023
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N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

2022

9H6H
6 Sep

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A
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12B6H
6 Dec

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

wagy
Total

3/3

2/3

3/3

3/3

3/3

2/4

3/4

3/4

4/4

4/4

4/4

1/1

1/1

1/1

0/1
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IPCC Members’ Attendance at Joint IPCC/CAPO Meetings

HHEA 20225 4B %E2023%F3A8
Date: April 2022 to March 2023

@ H£i7E Attended O #iE Did notattend  N/A F2& A E Not a Member of the Meeting

2022
LS
6H21H 98208 12H829H Total
21 Jun 20 Sep 29 Dec

FFE Chairman
FomsFL L > SBS s JP
Ms Priscilla WONG Pui-sze, SBS, JP o ® [ ° 4/4
Bl EFE Vice-Chairmen
Z5R=®ES » GBS 0 P
Hon Frankie YICK Chi-ming, GBS, JP ® ° O ® 3/4
PRIRSEEES » JP
Hon Ronick CHAN Chun-ying, JP ® ® o ® 4/4
RokE=®HS > BBS P
Hon Jimmy NG Wing-ka, BBS, JP o ° [ ° 4/4
£ 8 Members
PREZEE A > BBS > MH 5 JP
Mr Clement CHAN Kam-wing, BBS, MH, JP ® ® ® ® 4/4
FoKIBARE"
Mr Alex CHU Wing-yiu" i ® L N/A 3/3
FRIEARIE L > BBS » MH
Dr Daniel CHAN Ching-yan, BBS, MH o ® o o 4/4
FRBRE
Mr Roland WONG Ka-yeung ® ® o o 4/4
xR E
Mr Wilson KWONG Wing-tsuen O O [ (] 2/4
EEefExw L > BBS> MH - JP"
Ms Melissa Kaye PANG, BBS, MH, JP" O O O N/A 0/3
PRIZSE A
Mr CHAN Chak-ming N/A N/A N/A ° 1/1
SRt P
Ms Ann AU Chor-kwan, JP* ® ® o N/A 3/3

H%It 2
FEET+ -~ o o - "

Miss Sylvia LEE Hiu-wah"

i 90 F BUBRES EERFEEY | 2022/23 TS
&



® 4/E Attended

FRICEH > BBS > MH » JP”
Dr David LEE Ka-yan, BBS, MH, JP"

BEEHE
Prof Martin WONG Chi-sang”

ZEEESTE o P
Mr Johnny YU Wah-yung, JP*

R pEgstE 1 > SBS» MH » JP
Dr Anissa CHAN WONG Lai-kuen, SBS, MH, JP

EORTE 0 MH > P
Mr LEE Man-bun, MH, JP

ZZEF,EL LT > BBS P
Ms Jane Curzon LO, BBS, JP

REEF¥LZ L > SBS
Mrs Helen YU LAI Ching-ping, SBS

MREEBLT )P
Miss Mabel CHAN Mei-bo, JP

REMAEE > MH > JP
Mr Randy YU Hon-kwan, MH, JP

STRARRZZ - #
Ms Cindi HUI Ming-ming*

PRUE 2452 #
Prof LIN Feng*

Pro< EEE A #
Dr Desmond NGUYEN Gia-hung*

MR E 4 > BBS » JP*
Mr lvan SZE Wing-hang, BBS, JP#

EHEZE 20225128 31H
" Until 31 December 2022

* R2023F 1B 1 BEZRE
#  Appointed on 1 January 2023

Independent Police Complaints Council | Report 2022/23

6H21H
21 Jun

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

O &fE Did not attend

2022

9H20H
20 Sep

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

SAE Chapter5 | #B#Z24E Organisational Structure

N/A R2e& M E Not a Member of the Meeting

L

1;532? Total
([ ) N/A 3/3
O N/A 2/3
{ N/A 2/3
J J 4/4
J O 1/4
O L 3/4
J [ 3/4
[ J ] 4/4
O O 1/4
N/A [ 1/1
N/A o 11
N/A O 0/1
N/A o 11

9
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E5Z8Y
Committees

BEEEZEOAZENE BRRHFHER
RERHFERS © LS EEFHRAE
ITFERRYL T AEEEEEE > UES
BRI EITHAE

IEAEEZE g REHEMMREREN
B

]- BERREAREZES

Members of the IPCC are divided into three groups to examine
investigation reports submitted by CAPO. The IPCC has also set up five
Committees so as to perform its functions more efficiently.

The terms of reference and members of the five Committees are as
follows:

Serious Complaints Committee

st E

@FTEZER > AURERZZEEEHER
PIBREEZ ;

(b) BREFI B E B R R E R FEEMIT
2R

OMEESTEESRIBMEELE
BB > BB ZEHER;

dEBEZBRERFEENAETER > LA
FRERELER

REEZEERABENLHERRER
FEZEARMINEMNEE  HELEEE

F% & Membership
FE
Z5E=%E > GBS 2 JP

=8

FREgER s » BBS » MH » JP

BB at o |P(2022£12815)

EEEEE G T (2022412 A1F)

ER{CELE > BBS MH » JP
(2022412 A1F)

EEEHET 2022412 81F)

BEBNLAE P (2022#£12815)

PR REystE L > SBS» MH » JP

FERIGHEAE 202341 51F)

ERACE 0 MH 0 JP

FR1EfrtE L > BBS » MH

PREZ 2T 0 JP

BRIZ$E LA (2023461 518)

FFBABA & = (20234 1 E)

MUIBEIR (202343 57E)

BrER EEE A (20234 1 /)

Terms of reference

(@) To determine the criteria of serious cases that should come
under the monitoring of the Committee;

(b) To examine and determine special procedures for monitoring
serious complaints;

(c) To examine the need to seek outside professional advice/
service to facilitate the scrutiny of complaint cases;

(d) To examine the findings of serious complaint cases after
investigation has been completed and put forward its
recommendations to the Chairman;

(e) To put forward any issues in relation to the monitoring of
serious complaint cases for the IPCC's deliberation as the
Committee deems appropriate.

Chairman
Hon Frankie YICK Chi-ming, GBS, JP

Members

Mr Clement CHAN Kam-wing, BBS, MH, JP
Ms Ann AU Chor-kwan, JP until December 2022)
Miss Sylvia LEE Hiu-wah wntil December 2022)
Dr David LEE Ka-yan, BBS, MH, JP

(Until December 2022)
Prof Martin WONG Chi-sang until becember 2022)
Mr Johnny YU Wah-yung, JP (until December 2022)
Dr Anissa CHAN WONG Lai-kuen, SBS, MH, JP
Mr Roland WONG Ka-yeung ntil january 2023)
Mr LEE Man-bun, MH, JP
Dr Daniel CHAN Ching-yan, BBS, MH
Miss Mabel CHAN Mei-bo, JP
Mr CHAN Chak-ming (Since January 2023)
Ms Cindi HUI Ming-ming (Since january 2023)
Prof LIN Feng (Since March 2023)
Dr Desmond NGUYEN Gia-hung (ince january 2023)

J
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Publicity and Community Relations Committee

M SEE
(@) BEATRAGL T RARDRMA

s B E FRYIEE ;

b) BEMMECHEATEENSERHTE
REMAMEREES) » B14E ¢

- ERYRNRABTMRE > HlINF
H-WEER - TYNEMER

- BEREFEIAERALD
- RENZEEREREERARS

g ;
(0) 5% (b) EPREETBIMNEENER ;

EZFESEFFLMABRLEE
RoHEEEEE,

) REZEERAHEE
RMABRERERSEE - ﬁii‘a‘-ﬁ%

HEEKHE
ERE e

F% & Membership

FE

PREFES T4 > BBS » MH » JP
=8

BB Lt o )P (2022F12815)

%ﬂﬁé%i@ozz&zz@ﬁ)
BEZEL 4 (2022412 A1F)

*E'** Sei 5 P (202212 815)

RENEL T > SBS

fE IEfRE L > BBS » MH (202245 51F)

PREB XL > JP

SFRRBR L = (2023 2 57E)

ﬁfn?éli@éE(Z(mizﬁi_E)

IR Se 4 > BBS 2 JP (202341 548)

\I]]]I]

Terms of reference

(@) To consider measures that could enhance the image and public
understanding of IPCC;

(b) To consider and approve publicity and community relations-
related activities which have been budgeted for, including:

— Content and design of publicity materials, such as annual
reports, website, videos, publications and other promotional
materials;

— Launching of publicity activities and surveys;

— Selection and commissioning of contractors to assist in such
projects;

(c) To monitor progress and quality of the projects in (b);

(d) To consider and advise on the annual publicity plan for the
IPCC’s consideration;

(e) To put forward any publicity and community relations-related
issues for the IPCCs deliberation as the Committee deems
appropriate.

Chairman
Mr Clement CHAN Kam-wing, BBS, MH, JP

Members

Ms Ann AU Chor-kwan, JP wntil December 2022)

Mr Alex CHU Wing-yiu (until December 2022)

Miss Sylvia LEE Hiu-wah (Until December 2022)

Mr Johnny YU Wah-yung, JP (until December 2022)

Mrs Helen YU LAl Ching-ping, SBS

Dr Daniel CHAN Ching-yan, BBS, MH wntil May 2022)
Miss Mabel CHAN Mei-bo, JP

Ms Cindi HUI Ming-ming (Since February 2023)

Dr Desmond NGUYEN Gia-hung (Since january 2023)
Mr Ivan SZE Wing-hang, BBS, P (Since january 2023)
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EEZEY

Management Committee

R EsEE
() EBHEETWERNIBIN
(b) BRI -

— BERENEIOND;

— HENERESREZIE/BR
MREE/SHREERIEENE
£~ FRREERER

— HEEERBEMZENEIZTH
£E;

— LEHEESETU ETRERE
BHEBNEINGHN > BREEE
BRTEHAREZEEBANGHANR
)

ORLZEEIAHBBENEATHRE

BEE HEEEERE -

il

-

F% & Membership
TE

FRIGIHAE (2022F651F)
Rk 244 (202256 FiE)

0

&E
PRIREZES P
B4t o P 20221251
RIKBBITHE (2022412 51F)
ZEEEY L (20224612 815)
EEEEL L BBS MH» JP
(2022412 A1F)
BEEHIR (202212515
ZESORAE o MH 2 JP
ZEIELZ L BBS P
REENRL L > SBS
BRIEf1E L > BBS » MH
SFIBEMAE > MH 5 JP
FTBABRL = (20234 1 57)

Terms of reference
(a) To oversee major areas of work of the Secretariat;
(b) To consider and approve:

— any changes to the annual budget;

— appointment, interdiction from duty, and termination of
employment of employees at Assistant Secretary-General
and Senior Vetting Officer/Senior Research Officer/Senior
Manager ranks;

— key administrative matters that affect the services of IPCC;

— proposed new contracts with estimated value above $250,000
or covering a new area of activity, with the exception of those
contracts or activities which come under the purview of the
Publicity and Community Relations Committee;

(c) To put forward any administrative and management issues for
the IPCC’s deliberation as the Committee deems appropriate.

Chairmen

Mr Roland WONG Ka-yeung ntil june 2022)
Mr Wilson KWONG Wing-tsuen (Since june 2022)

Members

Hon Ronick CHAN Chun-ying, JP

Ms Ann AU Chor-kwan, JP ntil December 2022)
Mr Alex CHU Wing-yiu (until December 2022)
Miss Sylvia LEE Hiu-wah wntil December 2022)

Ms Melissa Kaye PANG, BBS, MH, JP
(Until December 2022)

Prof Martin WONG Chi-sang until becember 2022)
Mr LEE Man-bun, MH, JP

Ms Jane Curzon LO, BBS, JP

Mrs Helen YU LAl Ching-ping, SBS

Dr Daniel CHAN Ching-yan, BBS, MH

Mr Randy YU Hon-kwan, MH, JP

Ms Cindi HUI Ming-ming (Since january 2023)
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Operations Advisory Committee

IRt SB[

(@) ERERRBZAERES - BANE
B aF 4R R By = B S o 1 AR R BY (B
o URMRBERAESEEZMESE
W—REEREEEFERAWERREH
ER > UKRTEEBER TEHRRE

HEEEER

b) BEFEERGERABTEEAS
B URESEEAREETITIEE
EEEEE ;

O RMEREZ  BEIRER > HR
ENEBRAFIEFRERHERR  BEE
ENERERFHESR  UWEHRA
RYREFRIETERIZ (BEREEER
PR IR S PRV R BIRED) » UE—
FRABRZEGARBRIEFIUE R
PR 5 AR 73 WL TR 20 5 B R IS
EEEEEEZTM EHTM o
LERER BRFUARFEER
BIBVIE RIS FRF B % BV5E50 > I
EEEBRRTEHER  HEEEE
J&

(d) AR B RS R BaE & T (EFT R BARIEA
RABFOWERRHAER  LEEE
BRTEHER  HEEEEZE -

F% & Membership

*E

RAKWBBICEE (2022412 51F)
fEIEfRE L » BBS » MH (20234 1,5%)

Il

I

TRER 44 > BBS > MH 2 JP
Bt )P 022412415
BEEHIT 202212 51F)
REENRLZ T > SBS

PREZE L > P (202341 57)
SOEEE > MH 0 JP

PRIZ G A (2023461 518)

Pk EBE & (20234 1 51€)
MRESIR 4 > BBS 2 JP (202341 542)

%
59

Terms of reference

(@) To advise the Secretariat on general issues and matters of significant
importance arising from the scrutiny and examination of Reportable
Complaints (RC), Notifiable Complaints (NC) categorisation and
cases resolved by Expression of Dissatisfaction Mechanism (EDM) as
well as monitoring actions on Service Quality Improvement
Initiatives, and, where it deems appropriate, make recommendations
for the IPCC's consideration;

(b) To co-ordinate Working Level Meetings (WLM) with CAPO and
nominate IPCC Members to chair the WLM,;

(©) Upon review, observation or report of the Secretariat, to advise on
the existing police complaint process and, where appropriate and
necessary, make recommendations to streamline the existing
workflows for complaint handling, from the intake to disposal of
complaints, with a view to further improving the efficiency and
effectiveness of the IPCC case examination process; and to this end it
will be consulted by the Secretariat on the review of the IPCC Vetting
Manual, police manuals, orders, standing procedures, instructions or
guidelines which are related to complaints or complaints handling,
and, where it deems appropriate, make recommendations for the
IPCC's consideration;

(d) To advise the Secretariat on research projects and studies to be
undertaken by the Secretariat in relation to the work of IPCC, and,
where it deems appropriate, make recommendations for the IPCC's
consideration.

Chairmen

Mr Alex CHU Wing-yiu (until December 2022)
Dr Daniel CHAN Ching-yan, BBS, MH (Since january 2023)

Members

Mr Clement CHAN Kam-wing, BBS, MH, JP

Ms Ann AU Chor-kwan, JP wntil December 2022)

Prof Martin WONG Chi-sang until December 2022)
Mrs Helen YU LAl Ching-ping, SBS

Miss Mabel CHAN N\ei—bo, P (Since January 2023)
Mr Randy YU Hon-kwan, MH, JP

Mr CHAN Chak-mmg (Since January 2023)

Dr Desmond NGUYEN Gia-hung (Since january 2023)
Mr Ivan SZE Wing-hang, BBS, P (Since january 2023)
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Legal Committee

RSt E

AELEEUWERFER  GRUTER
REKRERER -

() BZRIFERPTELNERME ;

(b) H(BEEEFE) K
STRIRERRE

(0) BEEZE G T (FPR AL I A AR

E

BE 8K @
o =

2 SRR A 2

(d) BEdK dr 1)

m = B8

éFﬁM b

(e) AT EEM T (E B RIS EPIMTE
R E M RRE -

EREHREGNERWEERENIT L
HERIE o

BE(ER, S ERFTEL M

F% 8 Membership

FE

MEBIE ZRAEREN > SBS » JP (20226 A1F)
S EEfE 1 > BBS» MH > JP

(B2022€£88F 12 51F)
FRIBEE 4 (202341 5E)

Ko
il

\

RxFm#%EEB > BBS JP

Terms of reference

To comment and express views on the following as may be
required by the Council or Secretariat from time to time.

(a) Legal issues arising from the examination of complaint
cases;

(b) Interpretation of the IPCCO and IPCC’s internal rules and
regulations;

(c) Legal research arising from or incidental to the Council’s
work;

(d) Legal issues arising from the operation and/or administration
of the Council;

(e) Any other legal issues related or incidental to the Council’s
work.

Legal Committee may require the Secretariat to assist in carrying
out the above.

Chairmen

Mr Paul LAM Ting-kwok, SBS, SC, JP wntil june 2022)
Ms Melissa Kaye PANG, BBS, MH, JP

(From August to December 2022)
Mr CHAN Chak-ming (Since january 2023)

Members
Hon Jimmy NG Wing-ka, BBS, JP

FRX 82504 (20224 12 57E) Mr Wilson KWONG Wing-tsuen (Since December 2022)
BB B R KRN (2022 F 5 5.1F) Mr Douglas LAM Tak-yip, SC wntil May 2022)
FEEEEL T (2022412 51F) Miss Sylvia LEE Hiu-wah wntit December 2022)
ZBFLEZ LT »BBS P Ms Jane Curzon LO, BBS, JP
SFBARRZ & (2023 1 5#8) Ms Cindi HUI Ming-ming (Since january 2023)
MUEEIT (202341 57E) Prof LIN Feng (Since january 2023)
\_ J
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Observers

EEREEZT REBRREZRES
BATHESEEERS > WHEESH
ERFERRRENBERERKRFHS

o MERN > BELETERENZENT
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Under the Observers Scheme, the Secretary for Security may appoint
persons deemed fit as IPCC Observers to assist the Council in observing the
manner in which CAPO handles and investigates Reportable Complaints.
The following is a list of Observers in the current reporting period:

BRaRE Name of Observers

2 B®EXLMH-JP
3 BREEYLP
4 BRUSERL
5 BRXES%LE > MH
6 REMTE
7 [RE®E4L > SBS P
8 MREREXE
9 mERKE
10 BR=EZEXxE
11 PBREREREER > MH > JP
12 BFEshfk=E )P
13 ERBREEE
14 BAMIEE > MH
15  ERKIEEL > MH > JP
16 EREELT > MH
17 ®R=ERLL P
18 SREBEL
19  R#REEFRZE
® 20 FREKEEL
® 21 FREHBLLIP
22 BKBSRE
23 BKHSEE
o 24 HERZL
25 HEREut
26 SReFiEEZ L > MH
27  BiREEL > BBS > MH
® 28 EXEKLE
o 29 ZEfMxzt
30 EERBLE

® 2022F 4B 1HHEs
Newly-appointed Observers (1 Apr 2022)

©® 2023FE481B8EBHK
Retired Observers (1 Apr 2023)

Independent Police Complaints Council | Report 2

Mr BOU Shing-ip

Ms CHAN Hang, MH, JP

Ms Jenny CHAN Heung-lin, JP

Dr Terence CHAN Ho-wah

Mr Calvin CHAN Ka-wai, MH

Mr Edwin CHAN Kin-bong

Dr Eugene CHAN Kin-keung, SBS, JP
Mr Tony CHAN Tung-ngok

Mr CHAN Wai-chuen

Mr CHAN Wing-fung

Prof CHAN Yuk-kit, MH, JP

Mr Calvin CHAU, JP

Mr CHENG Ming-git

Mr Mathew CHENG Muk-lam, MH
Dr Baldwin CHENG Shing-fung, MH, JP
Dr Edwin CHENG Shing-lung, MH
Mrs Peggy CHEUNG Po-yee, JP
Dr CHEUNG Wah-keung

Mr CHEUNG Yam-lung

Dr CHEUNG Yee-lai

Ms Mimi CHEUNG Yee-may, JP
Mr Gordon CHIN Shing-hoi

Mr Wilkie CHOI Wing-kee

Ms Katina CHONG Chui-shan

Ms Christina CHONG Dong-ying
Ms Joanne CHONG Sze-pui, MH
Dr CHOW Kam-wai, BBS, MH

Mr Ricky CHOY Wing-kay

Ms Linda CHUA Pui-shan

Mr Stephen CHUA Yiu-yeung

® 2022F11B18HES ® 2022F11B1HEK
Newly-appointed Observers (1 Nov 2022) Retired Observers (1 Nov 2022)

@ 2022%F-2023FFHE
Resigned Observer (2022-2023)

)
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BRaRE Name of Observers

® 31 #BEHZtT > MH Ms CHUNG Ching-may, MH
32 #@#RELZL Ms CHUNG Yin-ting
33 pElEEE Mr Alex FAN Hoi-kit
34 FXEEE Mr James Mathew FONG
35 TMEEXREL Dr Shirley FU
36 BEFELE 0 MH Mr Clement FUNG Cheuk-nang, MH
37 W@EIRMFEE Mr Alan HO Ka-ki
38 fAIMREZRE Hon Adrian Pedro HO King-hong
39 YK AE Mr HO Siu-kong
40 fAIRERRSEAE Mr HO Ting-hong
41  fIFHISTE Mr James HO Tsz-kong
42 fIEEEL Dr HO Wai-kuen
® 43 fEREXRLE Mr Alec HO Yat-wan
44 IR L Ms HO Yuen-han
® 45 FrES¥L Ms HUI Ching-ching
46  FrERRAZL L Ms Cindi HUI Ming-ming
47  EREXIEL Dr Tiffany IP Nga-min
48 FBEHEE Hon Carmen KAN Wai-mun
® 49 EERZt Ms Anna-Mae KOO Mei-jong
50 REEIELE Mr KWAN Chiu-ping
51 Bt sE Mr Spencer KWAN Chor-chung
® 52 MEEEELBBSMH- P Dr Lawrence LAM Chi-kit, BBS, MH, JP
53 MEBBEL Dr Otis LAM Cho-bun
54 MMIRFALE Mr LAM Chun-sing
o 55  MREEENSEE > MH Mr LAM Faat-kang, MH
56 MEEFEE Mr Laurie LAM Hoy-lee
57 MRS > BBS MH P Mr Matthew LAM Kin-hong, BBS, MH, JP
58 ZIEEtESLLE Mr Terence LAU Chun-kai
o 59 BJEZESLY > BBS MH 2 P Mr LAU Hing-wah, BBS, MH, JP
® 60 BR®\LE>MH P Mr LAU Ka-keung, MH, JP
61 FIXHELE Mr Benjamin LAU Man-tung
62 FExXEE > MH Mr Billy LAU Wai-kwong, MH
63 ZRIERLE Mr Ellis LAU Ying-tung
® 2022F481B¥ED ® 2022F11818HES ® 2022F11818EHK
Newly-appointed Observers (1 Apr 2022) Newly-appointed Observers (1 Nov 2022) Retired Observers (1 Nov 2022)
©® 2023F 48 1HRK ® 2022F-2023FFHE
Retired Observers (1 Apr 2023) Resigned Observer (2022-2023)

*
4
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BRERE
o 64 FEFUL
65 FHESLLE

66 FHEFULT
67 FFFEHEL LT MH P
© 68 ZRitxt
® 69 ZEmEBEXL
70 EEMzt
71 Bzt
72 MEERSTHE
® 73 EHFELL
® 74 EiREEL > MH
75 BE®B®BLZL > MH
® 76 BEFfHEL
o 77 HEEEEKE
78 BEERAE
79  BMAEL
80 BEB%T I »BBS MH: P
81 B=#FE~LLE > BBS
82  BETHLALLE > MH
83 EEEL L
84 FEHEBLL
85 EHIEMED
86 fhELWLE > MH
87 ZRBBZL P
® 838 MEXEE
89 RIHIBTZAD
90 RRigLE

91 EEE&EXE
93 FTREIELE

® 94 FEFHKRESBBS:IP
BESMSE 0 BBS MH » P
Rl B2+

O O
O\ WU
.

L’

® 2022F 4B 1HHEs
Newly-appointed Observers (1 Apr 2022)

©® 2023FE481B8EBHK
Retired Observers (1 Apr 2023)

Independent Police Complaints Council | Report 2022/23

® 2022F 11818
Newly-appointed Observers (1 Nov 2022)

@ 2022%F-2023FFHE
Resigned Observer (2022-2023)
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Name of Observers

Ms LEE Fu-fan

Mr LEE Sai-kee

Ms Vivian LEE Ying-shih

Mrs Tennessy LEE HUI Mei-sheung, MH, P
Ms LEUNG Suk-chong

Ms Yvonne LEUNG Yuen-man
Ms LI Ka-yan

Ms LIAO Shu-hang

Mr Charles LIN Xiao-dong

Ms LIN Yee-wa

Dr Bobby LIU Kam-hing, MH
Ms Samantha LIU Ling-ling, MH
Dr Marcus LIU Tin-shing

Mr LO Fat-keung

Mr Vincent LO Kai-fu

Dr LO Pui-yin

Ms LU Hai, BBS, MH, JP

Mr Quincy LUl Kwan-yiu, BBS
Mr LUK King-kwong, MH

Ms Mabel MAK Lok-sheung
Ms Yanice MAK Wing-yan

Rev MOK Yun-fai

Mr Aaron NG Hoi-shan, MH

Ms NG Ling-ling, JP

Mr Raymond NG Ngai-man

Ir NG Pak-hung

Mr Andy NG Wang-tsang

Mr Lucas NGAN Chun

Mr Victor PANG Wing-seng, MH
Mr Rex SHAM Pui-sum

Mr Simon SIU Chak-yu, BBS, JP
Mr SIU Chor-kee, BBS, MH, JP
Ms Crystal SO Hoi-yan

® 2022F11B1HENRK
Retired Observers (1 Nov 2022)



BRaRE Name of Observers

97 BEB®EE Mr Eliott Hancock SUEN
98 xRARSEE > MH Mr Kyran SZE, MH
99 BRIE&RLE Mr Wilson TAM Wai-shun
100 WBEFKE Mr TANG Chi-wang
101 EEfExE Mr Hugh TONG Chun-wai
102 BEERZL Ms TONG Zi-yan
103 #\RI2L+ Ms Sherry TSAI Hiu-wai
104 BEEZL Ms TSANG Ka-lai

® 105 BXEARE Mr TSANG Man-biu

o 106 BXEfLLE Mr TSANG Man-hing
107 BEEYLL Ms TSANG Tsz-lui

© 108 #HME=2EL Dr Patrick TSE Kwing-chuen
109 FHZX+ Ms Gigi WONG Ching-chi

® 110 =MER{EL P Dr WONG Chung-leung, JP
111 FEEZT Ms Jacqueline WONG

o 112 =#ikE Mr David WONG Ming-bun
113 =ERKE Mr WONG Ting-hong
114 SASpIESRE P Mr WOO King-hang, JP
115 2= EL )P Dr Kitty WU Kit-ying, JP
116 REZELE Mr Bernard WU Tak-lung

e 117 HmAZEKE Mr Jackie XU Jieyi
118 EMsastE Mr YAN Mou-keung
119 HBEZRZL Ms Vivian YEUNG Cheuk-chi
120 HBEREEL Dr YEUNG Wai-hong
121 #BERZxt Ms Jennifer YEUNG Yin-chi
122 E#RrEsdE > BBS> MH» JP Mr Stephen YIP Chun-nam, BBS, MH, JP
123 @kEHELZ LT Ms Christina YIU Po-nga

® 124 WBARBREE Mr Alan YOUNG Tim-tsan
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The IPCC is supported by a full-time Secretariat, headed by Secretary-
General, with a total of 74 posts on the establishment in 2022/23. The
major function of the Secretariat is to assist Council Members in examining
complaint investigation reports and promoting the work of the IPCC.

The organisational chart of the IPCC Secretariat as of 31 March 2023 is as
below:
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Independent Auditor’s Report to Independent Police Complaints Council
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(ESTABLISHED UNDER THE INDEPENDENT POLICE COMPLAINTS COUNCIL ORDINANCE)

CPA

BER

A2 EEM (LUT 78 T3 f1)) EFFHIERN
BI08EIBIEMNBIUBEREFEIERHR
ZEG (UTHBEITEG)) OMBERER It
PBRFREER_Z-_=ZF=A=+—H
WHMBRRTREBEZBA EFENEZEK
m& s REEHRNFERER > UKR
FERRMisE > IR T EGFTBEREE ©

HAIRBA > AFUHFBRREREF B G
BAEEAH(EBMBREER)EEM
PEMRRTEER - _=ZF=A
=+ —HNUBR R RBEEZBLFEYN
MHBRERRERE -

ERZER

RAEREESBGHMNAGERN(EEE
SR EITES - RPIEXFER TAE
WETERESRRS MAHETME M HR
RAENEE BOFFE—TWHA - R
BEARGSHIAERMN(EESSHENER
TR (AT PR » HABINE
g UWERTTHINEMEXERS
£ - IS > RFIFFESHNERER
REMBEMARFNBEFERIBMELR

A2 35 4R R B H % BUAT 3R 35 LA M BY

1EI i

EERHEMEEEE  c HEE8ET
HNIFREANEN > EFEEMHR
KRBFIZHEMER S o

RPAEMBERENERE T REEME
B BRATAHZFHMEBEREMAT
NHEEEE® o

EERFNMBRENES > RPNEE
ERBHMERS > FBRED > ZEHM
EERTHEMBEBERAKRMAEETBER
FRTROBREEEREERNEUFFE
BEAERMRABER - ERHMABRITH
I IREFRBAEMEEEFEEKIE
mEt AP EREZEE - -EES
H > ZFIRBEARS -

Independent Police Complaints Council | Report 2022/23

BE_Z_-—F#=-H=+—HIEE
Year ended 31 March 2023

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the Independent Police
Complaints Council (the “Council”) set out on pages 108 to 131, which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2023, and
the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in
reserves and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Council as at 31 March 2023, and of its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (*HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the auditor's responsibilities for the
audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Council in accordance with the HKICPA’'s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the financial statements and
auditor’s report thereon

The Council is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the annual report, but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.
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Responsibilities of Council for the financial statements

The Council is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and for such internal control as the Council determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Council is responsible for
assessing the Council’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Council either intends to liquidate
the Council or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
s0.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 29 of Schedule 1 of the Independent Police
Complaints Council Ordinance (Cap.604), and for no other purposes. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Council’s internal control.

BUERLEHREBRFEER | 2022/23T1FkE
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* FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the Council.

e (Conclude on the appropriateness of the Council’s use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Council’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Council to cease
to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Council regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

%'véz Nag (P W

PATRICK WONG C.P.A. LIMITED

Certified Public Accountants

LAU YUK MING HAROLD

FCPA (Practising), MSCA

Certified Public Accountant (Practising),

Hong Kong Practising Certificate Number: P05468

31 August 2023
Hong Kong

Ref: 1113/A/PW/HL/1345/486
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

BE_ZE_=—F=-BA=+—HILEE
Year ended 31 March 2023

BfEE 2023 2022
Notes S $
WA Income
HAFEE  Government subventions 5 100,807,000 100,529,000
Hftie A Other income 6 1,625,369 341,310
102,432,369 100,870,310
4 Expenditure
BT pk4s  Staff costs 7 59,523,970 58,927,087
— M RATEER  General and administrative expenses 7 27,580,578 27,025,433
AEEHEME Honorarium to Council members 16 699,013 780,560
BAFEE R Finance cost 7 444,099 278,752
. b8247660 87,011,832
TEERBREZEIKGEEEE
Surplus and total comprehensive income for the year 7 14,184,709 13,858,478
FLI2EEF 131 BEZMBHRRMFEBERMBEHRR 2 — %
BIUZHMEREERNEL105E1078
The notes on pages 112 to 131 are an integral part of these financial statements.
Independent Auditor’s Report — Pages 105 to 107
B EREHRIPRFEED | 2022/23 T1ERE
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Statement of Financial Position

RZE_=F=B=+—H
At 31 March 2023
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M5 2023 2022
Notes S $
JEHEHBEE Non-current asset
EE&EE Fixed assets 9 24,477,413 9,838,153
WENEE Current assets
& KIETIE  Deposits and prepayments 5,470,043 5,848,059
H{hEWEIE Otherreceivables 3,896 493
FREERHBRR 2 R =B B 2 EHEfER
Time deposits with original maturity over 3 months 19,000,000 -
REKXIEFBY) C(Cash and cash equivalents 10 25,721,622 41,077,955
50,195,561 46,926,507
WEhEfE Current liabilities
HthFEIRIBEKREStER  Other payables and accruals 11 6,643,124 6,585,499
FAE&E Lease liabilities 13 9,232,639 4,107,538
R 15,875,763 10,693,037
WEHEFE Netcurrentassets 34319798 36,233,470
BEMAERTREHEMSE Total assets less current liabilities 58,797,211 46,071,623
JEsREIEfE Non-current liabilities
BET4mENEE4E  Provision for staff gratuities 12 6,805,862 6,980,895
FAE&E Lease liabilities 13 12,674,390 -
R 19,480,252 6,980,895
BEFE Netassets 39,316,959 39,090,728
{## Reserves
Ket&Ex  Accumulated surplus 14 39,316,959 39,090,728

FER_F_=F/)\B=+—BHELREIMEMERRE -

Approved and authorised for issue by the Council on 31 August 2023.

FINBEEF 31 EZHHRRWEEBAMFRERZ—E7
BUZEMBEERNE 1051078

The notes on pages 112 to 131 are an integral part of these financial statements.
Independent Auditor’s Report — Pages 105 to 107
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Statement of Changes in Reserves

BE_ZE_=—F=-BA=+—HILEE
Year ended 31 March 2023

R RER
Accumulated
B 5 surplus
Note S
R-TE-—FMB—HZ&ER
Balance at 1 April 2021 41,670,905
FARBREE WG
Surplus and total comprehensive income for the year 13,858,478
BREFTEBRINTHERN ( TEBHAT) ) WBLERHE
Excess reserve refunded to the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region (“the Government”) (16,438,655)
WZE-__F=A=+—HBKRMEA—BZ4&
Balances at 31 March 2022 and at 1 April 2022 39,090,728
FREGREZHEIE
Surplus and total comprehensive income for the year 14,184,709
RETHEBETNBLRHE
Excess reserve refunded to the Government 14 (13,958,478)
WIEZ=F=B=+—HB2Z4&k
Balance at 31 March 2023 39,316,959

FINEEF 31 EZUHRRWEEBAFMHRERZ —8D
BUIZHMREERNE 10521078

The notes on pages 112 to 131 are an integral part of these financial statements.
Independent Auditor’s Report — Pages 105 to 107
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Statement of Cash Flows

BE_ZE_=—F=-BA=+—HILEE
Year ended 31 March 2023

S87NE Chapter6 | BAFE#RR Financial Statements

MisE 2023 2022
Note S $
EiE;Z8 Operating activities
FREGBAEENG
Surplus and total comprehensive income for the year 14,184,709 13,858,478
EMTYZEELFAEE ¢ Adjustments for:
— #fre& Depreciation 13,559,306 16,366,872
— BA¥EER  Finance cost 444,099 278,752
— FBUEA Interest income (1,623,853) (286,085)
— REFEARNANBEGERE
Excess reserve refunded to the Government (13,958,478) (16,438,655)
SEBEEHRI 2 EERER
Operating surplus before working capital changes 12,605,783 13,779,362
e RBAREBEZRL 7 (380)
Decrease/(increase) in deposits and prepayments 378,016 (291,001)
HihrEWsIE 2/ Decrease in other receivables - 431,910
H I RIEREstER 21 m, (L)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables and accruals 57,625 (3,863,744)
BTAmMEEREZ CRL) /1Em
(Decrease)/increase in provision for staff gratuities (175,033) 824,673
REEEEHEEZIREMAREE
Net cash generated from operating activities 12,866,391 10,881,200
12EEE Investing activities
BABTEEE Purchase of fixed assets (263,307) (2,369,240)
FEHAEAR Z N =@ A 2 THIER
Placement of time deposits with original maturity over 3 months (19,000,000) -
BUFIE Interest received 1,620,450 305,800
RREEESZRE ML EEE  Net cash used in investing activities (17,642,857) (2,063,440)
FiE;E% Financing activities
EHERAEMNELIS Capital element of lease rentals paid (10,135,768) (12,110,852)
EHEEREFI SIS Interest element of lease rentals paid (444,099) (278,752)
BARREEZE RS M FE  Cash used in financing activities (10,579,867) (12,389,604)
RERREEEMZRLBEE
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (15,356,333) (3,571,844)
FNzRERREEED
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 41,077,955 44,649,799
FERZHAERREEEBY
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 10 25,721,622 41,077,955

BINEEF I3 RZHBRENEEBEMHRERZ —87
BIUZEMBREERNBE 105FE107 8

The notes on pages 112 to 131 are an integral part of these financial statements.

Independent Auditor’s Report — Pages 105 to 107

Independent Police Complaints Council | Report 2022/23
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1.
BUBERESRERFEZEG ((FE)) =
BEBE(BIERESRERHEZEGHRA)

(55604%) (T&GRM 1) B ILBY—1EE
C IRBERGRD > AEREEEHBH
At BEEGEERRE ERNEBERAR

BEFERNEEMBETLF > TREAE
15 B Fr 5 BR BY 2R B ¥R $& S (B SR RY BRI A 3R
EIFMEFRERITHRERENRM L
AWMERLESE - AETEREREEE
ERRFEREMELIFT ERERMERE

BABRHNITHETER > THART
BiEMER -

SMNEFTIIMEARE » ﬁtztxﬁ*ﬁﬁa‘:ﬁ,ﬁ\?f
BREAEEEREMESFRZ T
MENFBERRBTAENEEAE
FEAE ©

FENESTEREBTBBUTER - £/
EERBOAGEE T —EAMREE > YU
PRI RRAGEFATIMAX

2. FpERAMBHRSE

FENHHFHRRDIREEES
fRBYFR A & A E’\Jéiﬁﬂﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁﬂu s BIE
FREERNENEEMBRSEN - FE
G ERABRMEBRARGHRGR
o TEEFBEREHMNMEES -

sTETA G 18

ABE_ZT_=ZF=ZR=+—HHNEFE
N> AGERMNEBGIREEMIN
T _FNA—BRZBFAGREMBIRE]
HAEEFTNE B FREER o BLERME]
REETHNERBM B REENH AT
Eﬁﬁ%iﬁ&%iﬁjﬁﬁﬁﬁ%% °

1. General information

The Independent Police Complaints Council (the “Council”) is a body
corporate established under the Independent Police Complaints Council
Ordinance (Cap. 604) (the “Ordinance”). Under the Ordinance, the Council
assumes its statutory role as the authority for observing, monitoring and
reviewing the handling and investigation of reportable complaints, and
making recommendations to the Commissioner of Police or the Chief
Executive or both of them in respect of the handling or investigation of
reportable complaints as specified in the Ordinance. The Council also
monitors actions taken or to be taken in respect of any member of the
police force by the Commissioner in connection with reportable
complaints, and to advise them of its opinion on such actions.

Since the Council is not profit-oriented and is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements, its primary financial and capital
management objectives are to maintain a balance between annual
income and expenditure, so that it has the ability to operate as a going
concern and perform its statutory roles and functions.

The Council is primarily financed by government subventions. Any
operating surplus shall be carried forward to the following financial year
to meet future expenditure required for the operations of the Council.

2. Statement of compliance with Hong Kong financial
reporting standards

The Council’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong. A summary of significant accounting policies is set out in note
3.

In the year ended 31 March 2023, the Council has initially applied the
new and revised HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA that are first effective for
accounting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2022. The application of
these HKFRSs has no material effects on the Council’s financial
performance and positions.

BURRESRBHRESS | 2022/23TIERE
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Summary of significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The measurement basis used in preparing the financial statements is
at historical cost.

Fixed assets

Fixed assets are stated in the statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less
their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method, as follows:

Owned assets

Leasehold improvements 3 years
Office equipment 5 years
Computer equipment 3 years
Furniture and fixtures 3 years

Right-of-use asset

Leasehold land and building Over the lease term
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of fixed assets is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued
use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or
retirement of an item of fixed assets is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognised in profit or loss.
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(c)

(d)

Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
statement of financial position when the Council becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire; the Council transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets; or
the Council neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the assets but has not retained control
on the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the assets’ carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis where the purchase or sale of an asset is under a contract
whose terms require delivery of the asset within the timeframe
established by the market concerned, and are initially measured at
fair value, plus directly attributable transaction costs except in the
case of investments at fair value through profit or loss. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of investments at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets (including trade and other receivables) are
classified under this category if they satisfy both of the following
conditions:

— the assets are held within a business model whose objective is
to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

— the contractual terms of the assets give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured at

amortised cost using the effective interest method less loss
allowances for expected credit losses.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Loss allowances for expected credit losses

The Council recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on
financial assets at amortised cost. Expected credit losses are the
weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of a
default occurring as the weights.

At the end of each reporting period, the Council measures the loss
allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the
expected credit losses that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of that financial instrument (“lifetime expected
credit losses”), or if the credit risk on that financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition.

If, at the end of the reporting period, the credit risk on a financial
instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Council measures the loss allowance for that financial
instrument at an amount equal to the portion of lifetime expected
credit losses that represents the expected credit losses that result
from default events on that financial instrument that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting period.

The amount of expected credit losses or reversal to adjust the loss
allowance at the end of the reporting period to the required amount
is recognised in profit or loss as an impairment gain or loss.

Leases
(i) Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date of
initial application, the Council assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at
inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless the
terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.



3. XEGEHEE @) 3. Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)
(H #ME @
(i) ZEEZFEEA

() Leases (continued)
(i) The Council as a lessee

FEHHERBEESEMRE

rEHEEHRAFRGABENS
H+_EAU TR EEEE
T HATE G R B e & Bk o
rENBREDBREEEEMR
B R EREEEEERE
NG NMRIZERERTHEARE
RARE -

EEEESZE
ERREENRAELE

() HESENYFHESHE;

(b) MBI B ZAIFTER
EEEENR BEEM
BHEIRHEEERE ; &

O FEELENERMBERE
B ©

ERREEREMAHIEMRS
TEKRRBEBEFE > LEME
EaENEMEREMFL

B o

REEMEEENSHEREEE
EREHERRIERE  £&F
CHABBEREREREHER
WEHEITE o BRILLASH > ERHE
BEGRHEMGFAIEAFEHNE
EHRMNBEEUNERENE -

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Council applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option. It
also applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-value
assets. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognized as expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

(@) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

(b) any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives received;
and

() anyinitial direct costs incurred by the Council.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Council is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the end
of the lease term is depreciated from commencement date to
the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life or the lease term.
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3. XEGEHEE @) 3. Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)
(H #ME @
(i) ZEEABEMEA (8B)

() Leases (continued)
(i) The Council as a lessee (continued)
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Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Council recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the
present value of lease payments, the Council uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if
the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted by
interest accretion and lease payments.

The Council remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

(@) the lease term has changed or there is a change in the
assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which
case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

(b) the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review, in which cases
the related lease liability is remeasured by discounting
the revised lease payments using the initial discount rate.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and at bank. Cash equivalents are
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition.

Other payables

Other payables are initially measured at fair value and, after initial
recognition, at amortised cost, except for short-term payables with
no stated interest rate and the effect of discounting being
immaterial, that are measured at their original invoice amount.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Council has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition
(i) Government subventions

Government subventions are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the subvention will
be received and the Council will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government subventions relating to the purchase of fixed
assets are included in deferred income and are credited to the
statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis
over the expected lives of the related assets.
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Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
(i) Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method.

(iiij) Sundry income

Sundry income is recognised on an accrual basis.

Impairment of tangible assets

At the end of reporting period, the Council reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets with finite useful lives to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss, if any.

Employee benefits
(i) Employee leave and gratuity entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and gratuity are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is
made for the estimated liability for annual leave and gratuity as
a result of services rendered by employees up to the end of
reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity or paternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

(i) Retirement benefit costs

The Council has joined the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the MPF Scheme) established under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Ordinance for contract staff. The Council contributes 5%
of the relevant income of staff members under the MPF Scheme
and subject to ceiling of $1,500 per month. The assets of the
Scheme are held separately from those of the Council, in funds
under the control of trustee.

Payments to the MPF Scheme are charged as an expense as
they fall due.
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3. Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

(m) Related parties

0

(i

A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to
the Council if that person:

(@) has control orjoint control over the Council;

(b) has significant influence over the Council; or

(0 is a member of the key management personnel of the
Council.

An entity is related to the Council if any of the following
conditions applies:

(@) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Council or an entity
related to the Council.

(b) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (i).

(0 A person identified in ())(a) has significant influence over
the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity.

(d) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,

provides key management personnel services to the
Council.
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4, Critical accounting estimates and judgement

The Council's management makes assumptions, estimates and
judgements in the process of applying the Council’s accounting policies
that affect the assets, liabilities, income and expenses in the financial
statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs. The assumptions,
estimates and judgements are based on historical experience and other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. While
the management reviews their judgements, estimates and assumptions
continuously, the actual results will seldom equal to the estimates.

Certain key assumptions and risk factors in respect of the financial risk
management are set out in note 15. There are no other key sources of
estimation uncertainty that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of asset and liabilities within the next
financial year.

5. Government subventions

Government subventions represent the funds subvented by the
Government for the Council’s services which is determined with regard to
the needs of the Council as presented in its annual budget and proposed
projects.

6. HhgA 6. Otherincome
2023 2022
S $
FEUWA Interestincome 1,623,853 286,085
MIEWBA  Sundryincome 1516 55,225
1,625,369 341,310
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7. FRRBREEWE 7. Surplus and total comprehensive income for the year
FRRGAEENRGEEFA ! Surplus and total comprehensive income for the year is arrived at after
charging:
2023 2022
S $
(@) BImd Staff costs
— gHIMATEEME  Contributions to Mandatory Provident Funds 1,151,186 1,171,311
,,,,,, — #is - TERHEMER  Salaries, wages and otherbenefits 58,372,784 57,755,776
59,523,970 58,927,087
(b) —R&BKITE(ER Generaland administrative expenses
ZEEENE  Auditor's remuneration 42,000 41,000
EMREIEER Rates and management fee 2,310,410 2,441,330
BEERABREEEH Publicity and public educational affairs 1,338,083 1,334,870
= e8] Observers’ scheme 468,388 404,280
fRB&  Insurance 80,552 76,983
H#EFN1FE  Repairs and maintenance 3,866,403 3,224,490
‘AFREHE  Utilities 648,471 508,965
#TE Depreciation 13,559,306 16,366,872
,,,,,, Hfto Others 5266965 2626643
27,580,578 27,025,433
() miZEMAs Finance cost
HEEEZFE  Interest on lease liabilities 444,099 278,752
8. MIE 8. Taxation

BIE(REIEE) S 8768 E » &~az  No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the financial
REM FItAgEmAEAMBHREKLIE statements as the Council is exempted from profits tax pursuant to
EEFEREME o section 87 of the Inland Revenue Ordinance.
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9. BIEEE 9. Fixed assets
fERE
BEEE BE
Right-of-use
Owned assets assets
HELH
HEREIR HFARKE HAERB Bzt et RigF L]
Furniture Leasehold
Leasehold and Office Computer land and
improvements fixtures equipment  equipment  Sub-total buildings Total
S S S S S ] S
M4 Cost
RZE__FME—H
At 1 April 2022 7,573,088 1,383,629 2,043,993 28,035,465 39,036,175 34,501,815 73,537,990
E  Additions - 5,844 44,270 213,193 263,307 27,935,259 28,198,566
RE Disposals ] S s 690 T beran - 647
A ZE_=F=B=1—H
At31March2023 7573088 1299676 2081313 282480658 39202735 62437074 101,639,809
Z:HAE  Accumulated depreciation
RIZEZZHME—H
At 1 April 2022 6,911,150 1,219,569 1,649,564 23,368,876 33,149,159 30,550,678 = 63,699,837
FEWITE  Charge for the year 467,250 111,806 138,119 2,683,160 3,400,335 10,158,971 13,559,306
REUS Witebackondisposals T e 6950 T e <. e
RZFZ=F=R=+—H
At3IMarch2023 7378400 1241578 | 1780733 26052036 36452747 40709649 | 71,162,396
BREEME  Net book value
RZFZ=£=R=+—H
At 31 March 2023 194,688 58,098 300,580 2,196,622 2,749,988 21,727,425 24,477,413
% Cost
RZE_—#£NB—H
At 1 April 2021 7,573,088 1,379,164 1,980,373 25,807,450 36,740,075 34,501,815 71,241,890
1®E  Additions - 4,465 63,620 2,301,155 2,369,240 - 2,369,240
®E Dsposa S S T Buro Buo - (30
RZE__H=R=+—H
At 31 March 2022 7,573,088 1,383,629 2,043,993 28,035,465 39,036,175 34,501,815 73,537,990

)
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9. EIEEE (48) 9. Fixed assets (continued)
jidiiti 4
BEEE BE
Right-of-use
Owned assets assets
HEL
HEREIR HEARKE HAERE ElimtE it RigF g
Furniture Leasehold
Leasehold and Office Computer land and
improvements  fixtures equipment  equipment  Sub-total buildings Total
$ $ S $ $ S S
ZHFE  Accumulated depreciation
RZZ2Z—-FNB—H
At 1 April 2021 6,442,808 1,105,316 1,428,228 19,732,482 28,708,834 18,697,271 47,406,105
FEAITE  Charge for the year 468,342 114,253 221,336 3,709,534 4,513,465 11,853,407 16,366,872
REWS Witebackondisposals S S O 0 B L R o 73,140
RZB__H=/=+-H
At3IMarch2022 691150 1219569 1649564 23368876 33149159 30550678 | 63,699,837
IREFE Net book value
RZE__H=R=1+—H
At 31 March 2022 661,938 164,060 394,429 4,666,589 5,887,016 3,951,137 9,838,153
10. RERFTEEEY 10. Cash and cash equivalents
2023 2022
S $
$R177E=r Bank balances 25,721,622 21,077,955
R EHREARR DR =8B Z EEIER
Time deposits with original maturity less than 3 months .~ - .. 20,000,000
WEKRIFLEEY Cash and cash equivalents 25,721,622 41,077,955
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11. HfthFE{IR AR Es & 11. Other payables and accruals
2023 2022
S $
Bt#5&fE Financial liabilities 3,475,566 3,146,904
KRB AR FRGE  Unutilised annual leave balances 3,167,558 3,438,595
6,643,124 6,585,499
HMEGHRIERESERTES R —HFRME  Other payables and accruals are expected to be settled within one year.
I8 o
12. BT mENE B E 12. Provision for staff gratuities
2023 2022
S $
MR-B-—F —F-—FA—HEER
Balance as at 1 April 2022/2021 6,980,895 6,156,222
EEEBHREMAE  Provision made for the year 5,393,057 5,073,798
FEEEMEE Provision utilised fortheyear (5,568,090)  (4,249,125)
MRIE_=F /"L _F£=ZF=+—HW4EH
Balance as at 31 March 2023/2022 6,805,862 6,980,895

ETHRMEREERTXMESTMEH  Provision for staff gratuities is set up for the gratuity payments which will
METHNRIEE BRESHRIAMINEMERIL ©  be payable to employees of the Council who complete their contracts
commencing from the date of their employment.

13. 1§ &1% 13. Lease liabilities
2023 2022
S $
REMAEHIE  Minimum lease payments due
— —fF@  Within 1 year 9,675,000 4,129,868
T TH®MUEBRFN 1todyeas 12,900,000 -
22,575,000 4,129,868
A RRAERE  Less:futurefinancecharges  (667,971) (22,330)
FAE&EIRE  Present value of lease liabilities 21,907,029 4,107,538
DHfifEA :  Analysed as:
TRENERS>  Current portion 9,232,639 4,107,538
Jemenaoy  Non-currentportion 12,6743% -
21,907,029 4,107,538
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14. Accumulated surplus

In accordance with section 6 of the Memorandum of Administrative
Arrangements (“MAA”) dated 22 June 2017 signed between the
Government and the Council, the Council is allowed to keep and
accumulate any unspent recurrent subvention as reserve, subject to the
condition that the reserve accumulated should not exceed 25% of its
recurrent subvention of that financial year. If the reserve as at the end of
the financial year exceeds 25% of the recurrent subvention of that
financial year, the Council shall return the amount in excess of the limit to
the Government, except with the approval of Secretary for Financial
Services and the Treasury.

The Council considers the amount of excess reserve for the year has not
been conclusive up to the reporting date, no provision for the refund of
excess reserve to the Government has been made as at 31 March 2023
accordingly. During the year, the excess reserve of $13,958,478 for the
year ended 31 March 2022 has been refunded to the Government by the
Council.

15. £ T A 15. Financial instruments
rEREEMEED AHLUTER : The Council has classified its financial assets in the following category:
2023 2022
S $
FHBSERRASTIBRAYERIEAE Financial assets at amortised cost
¥& Deposits 2,883,093 3,574,106
EfhpgElgzrIE  Other receivables 3,896 493
[REVHBEARR 2 =18 B 2 EHBER
Time deposits with original maturity over 3 months 19,000,000 -
REpREEMEY  Cashand cash equivalents 25,721,622 41,077,955
47,608,611 44,652,554
BIIBRRE S RIBRFEES | 2022/23 TERE
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15. Financial instruments (continued)

The Council has classified its financial liabilities in the following category:

2023 2022
S $
R ATIIRNERI&ME  Financial liabilities at amortised cost
HMPEARIEREER Other payables and accruals 3,475,566 3,146,904
HEAHE leaseliaviies 21,907,029 4107538
25,382,595 7,254,447

Fﬁﬁ@mﬂlﬂﬁ’ﬁ&ﬁ{E*ﬁ%_g::E&
—EC-F=ZA=+—HHNAREBEETIR
BEKRER -

rENEEEREMIAGHENEE
B RBEERBKRMNREAR ~EE
BUTHREEZFRRE  LURBZEFR
BEAENUBRREGR T EERHE
@ o

(a) EEEAR

AEUESEAEREERR > M&S
REEERMBEERBARMERE
B - AENEERAREERBHIRT
Fm e RITERNEERBRAR > H
ERZIRTIIAREBRTKRGIRE
BYRF 5 A4S o

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially different
from their fair values as at 31 March 2022 and 2023.

The Council is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk
arising in the normal course of its operation and financial instruments. The
Council’s risk management objectives, policies and processes mainly
focus on minimising the potential adverse effects of these risks on its
financial performance and position by closely monitoring the individual
exposure.

(@ Creditrisk

The Council has no concentration of credit risk. The maximum
exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of the
financial assets. The Council is exposed to credit risk on financial
assets, mainly attributable to deposits with banks. The credit risk on
bank deposits is limited because the counterparties are authorised
financial institutions regulated under the Hong Kong Banking

Ordinance.
2023 2022
S $
BUEHEE  Summary quantitative data
¥% Deposits 2,883,093 3,574,106
HthEWZIE Other receivables 3,896 493
#R177F" Bank balances 25,721,622 21,077,955
[REIHAHARR DI =18 B 2 EHATF R
Time deposits with original maturity less than 3 months - 20,000,000
[REERERFR 2 1 =18 B 2 E HATERX
Time deposits with original maturity over 3 months 19,000,000 -
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15. Financial instruments (continued)
(b) Liquidity risk

The Council is exposed to liquidity risk on financial liabilities. It
manages its funds conservatively by maintaining a comfortable level
of cash and cash equivalents in order to meet continuous
operational need. The Council ensures that it maintains sufficient
cash which is available to meet its liquidity.

The details of remaining contractual maturities at the end of the
reporting period of the financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates
current at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest date the
Council can be required to pay are as follows:

BITSHRIAI —FRE Hid—F
FREEE RERBE BEKREE (EFERRE
Total
contractual Within 1 Over 1 year
Carrying  undiscounted year or on but within
amount cash flow demand 5 years
$ $ $ $
2023
HithfedRuaKkETER Other payables and accruals 3,475,566 3,475,566 3,475,566 -
MEAM Leaseliabilites 21,907,029 22575000 9675000 12,900,000
25,382,595 26,050,566 13,150,566 12,900,000
2022
HMEZUEREtER Other payables and accruals 3,146,904 3,146,904 3,146,904 -
HAAH Leaseliabilities 4107538 4129868 4129868 "
7,254,447 7,276,772 7,276,772 -

= E b

AENFIRAREBRERTER
AENIRITEREBAFEER A
ZEARBIE - Eilt > AEFEHFEE
SHI A EAFIRER o

Interest rate risk

The Council’s exposure on interest rate risk mainly arises from its
cash deposits with bank. The Council mainly holds deposits with
bank in saving account and the exposure is considered not
significant. In consequence, no material exposure on interest rate
risk is expected.

BUERLEHREBRFEER | 2022/23T1FkE
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15. Financial instruments (continued)
(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

Summary quantitative data

2023 2022

ZE&REE Floating-rate financial assets

$R17457F Deposits with banks
[REVEREAMR LIS =18 B Z EHRERR

16,867,768 14,912,275

Time deposits with original maturity less than 3 months - 20,000,000

REBHAFR Z N =8B Z EHITFR

Time deposits with original maturity over 3 months 19,000,000 B

REREHFMEENFREAR FBRK
ENt > AAERETEIREEEA
ENHBHRRAEELEEATE -

(d) UAREEHEZEMIA

REBSHER > AGEREEMITA
DRREETIR -

16. EXRIKE X5

FERASAREAMANERNETZIRZHE
LI

35,867,768 34,912,275

No sensitivity analysis for the Council’s exposure to interest rate risk
arising from deposits with bank is prepared since based on the
management’s assessment the exposure is considered not
significant.

(d) Financial instrument at fair value

At the end of reporting period, there were no financial instruments
stated at fair value.

16. Material related party transactions

The Council had the following material related party transactions during
the year:

2023 2022
S $
~EZEME Honorarium paid to Council members 699,013 780,560

EMFFEEAREBBRETREER MR
BHRZ > MEFIKREAEEZERETEE
BASAEFAEEGIEE > e TRR
FENUFEEREBRKBIZFET
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All transactions related to the procurement of goods and services
involving organisations in which a member of the Council and key
management personnel may have an interest are conducted in the normal
course of business and in accordance with the Council’s financial
obligations and normal procurement procedures.
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TREFLAENBEZHIEEERNE
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17. Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities
The table below details changes in the Council’s liabilities from financing

activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising
from financing activities are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future

B AEERBRERERPEFEHEARMEIET  cash flows will be, classified in the Council’s statement of cash flows as
BIFTESRIREMN o cash flows from financing activities.
HEaE
Lease liabilities
2023 2022
S $

44 At beginning of the year 4,107,538 16,218,390
MEREHREEEZEH : Changes from financing cash flows:
BNHAERESMNELRES  Capital element of lease rentals paid (10,135,768) (12,110,852)

BAEERESMNF SS9  Interest element of lease rentals paid

MERSREEZEE4EEE  Total changes from financing cash flows

Hith#&sh . Other changes:

fAE&EFIE Interest on lease liabilities
RERTIZMHEEMEMNEEAE

Increase in lease liabilities from entering into new lease during the year

Hh&sh48% Total other changes

(444,099) (278,752)

,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, (10,579,867) _ (12,389,604)
(6,472,329) 3,828,786
444,099 278,752

27,935,259 -

RiESMRE Totalotherchanges | 28379358 278,752
21,907,029 4,107,538

WX Atend of the year

BUERLEHREBRFEER | 2022/23T1FkE




S87NE Chapter6 | BAFE#RR Financial Statements

18. EMEMER FE MR EXMABY  18. Hong Kong financial reporting standards issued but
BEEMBHREEN not yet effective for the year

UFTBEEGERFEFRERERZEBM  HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective for the year include
BHMEER > BLEEAEAFGNEER the following HKFRSs which may be relevant to the Council’s operations

S RFTER - and financial statements:
WA T EERM
HIABER
Effective for annual
periods beginning
on or after
EBMBEREERNE 1758 RESHREEETR —_E_=F—HF—H
HKFRS 17, Insurance Contracts and the related Amendments 1 January 2023
EARAGHENE 1 RZ2BIIX REHFTBHEESLE —E_mE—HA—H
Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 1 January 2024
EARAGHENE | RAFBVERSENEFREE 2H/2BIIER B HEHE —_E_=f#—HF—H
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2, Disclosure of Accounting Policies 1 January 2023
EARAGHEUNE IR ZBEIE BB TEE —E_=F—HF—H
Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of Accounting Estimates 1 January 2023
EARAGHEUNE 12RZEBIX KEE—XGEHEEREENFELERIE —_E_=F—HF—H
Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising 1 January 2023

from a single transaction

TENAEETERBRMZEEAEMFE  The Council has not early adopted these HKFRSs. The Council is in the
REER o AFIRIETFHELBETRME  process of making an assessment of what the impact of these
AN ERERIBFAERNTEE - ZE8A  developments is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far
AlE > RERARMNBRAIETRIFEDNRLR it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
A BEEHAENTHBEREEATLE - impact on the Council’s financial statements.

19. BBMERR 19. Approval of financial statements
AMBHRRENZZFZ=F/\B=+—H These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Council on
BEAENRAETEM 31 August 2023.
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B 7% & 2% Performance Pledges

ELESEREITFRENEBERE » 5] T —RIIBRF &G

We attach great importance to efficient and quality performance.
Our performance pledges are:

RER (IREEIEER) *

BE
Haniillfmﬁiises Performance target
8 (standard response time)*
RE /R BB
. By telephone/in person Immediatel
53 y telephone/in p y
Enquiries
‘ BE 10 KA
In writing Within 10 days
—R&{E 2 Normal cases
BRFERFIRETZR —REHNEMIESR
(BlaN;R B &R BT B R ST) . 31@5 7
Minor cases (such as Impoliteness or Neglect of Duty) Within 3 months
with no more than one round of Query raised by the
IPCC with CAPO
. EX{EZ Complicated cases
BB P
Monitoring of Fﬁﬁ?}i‘i%ﬂ’ﬂ@% (1§U§Iﬂ@ﬂ§2?§iﬁ%§i§) ) XEERY
laints FERHFEZRIRESN—HEHNSMER Withi h
compla All serious cases (such as Assault or Fabrication of Evidence) ithin 6 months

and minor cases with two or more rounds of Queries raised
by the IPCC with CAPO

Z 1Z{E 2 Review cases
6{EA RN
ERERAERRRN AT GRS ENER 2
= - Within 6 months

Requests for reviewing the classification of
Reportable Complaints

* RBRERFERRRLBERS CIRN B HEs

Counting from the date of receipt of CAPO’s final investigation report/response



AERUERARAES c HEN=ERNEREAETE > SHEESREEIL - AF - #EN

BEH(CHER)  BZERBHER  UHEBIRHMNESESR (PRER) > BEF—RBEHN

%;jﬁb%%%ﬂﬂﬁ%ﬁ% » RMZBEEEER (GHER) » MBAREREBMERBRFER
|ERMELD

The Annual Report has cogwheels as the design concept, with three interlocking wheels on the
cover symbolising the values of independence, impartiality and integrity upheld by the IPCC
(left wheel) in examining each complaint case. By proposing Service Quality Improvement
Initiatives (central wheel), the IPCC drives changes with the police to enhance their service
quality, and lay a solid foundation for mutual trust (right wheel) to strengthen public
confidence in Hong Kong’s two-tier police complaints system.
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